1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Meeting of the Membership
March 25, 2020 @ 12:00 p.m.
Via Conference Call

Meeting is being Livestreamed

Call to Order

1.1

Call to Order Meeting of the Membership

Approval of Minutes:

2.1

Approval of Minutes of the February 26, 2020 Meeting of the Membership (Action Item) (Pages 3-6)

Reports / Action Items / Information Items:

3.1 Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 7-10)
3.2 Finance & Audit Committee Update (Informational) (Pages 11-12)

a) Committee Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Pages 13-16)
33 Audited Financial Statements (Action Item) (Pages 17-63)
34 2019 — Investment Report (Action Item) (Pages 64-68)
3.5 Governance Committee Report (Informational) (Pages 69-70)

a) Committee Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Pages 71-75)

b) Board Self-Evaluation (Informational)
3.6 2020 Tax Incentives Induced/Closing Schedule/ Estimated Real Property Tax (Informational) (Pages 76-78)
3.7 Approval of Board Certification of RLF Plan (Pages 79-85)
3.8 Policy Committee Update (Informational) (Pages 86-88)
Inducement Resolutions: ECIDA Private

Incentives Investment Mounicipality

4.1 3310 Benzing Road, LL.C/Marathon Drains (Pages 2-44) $ 92,000 $ 725,000 Orchard Park
4.2 637 Linwood, LLC/1275 Delaware, LLC (Pages 45-95) $380,911 $12,460,993 Buffalo
43 Jemal’s Seneca, LLC (Pages 96-151) $337,500 $45,000,000 Buffalo
4.4 Steuben Foods Incorporated (Pages 152-198) $967,505 $25,621,494 Elma

Review and Adoption of Policies, Reports and Committee Charters: (Separate Package)

1.
2.
3.
4.

2019 - Mission Statement, Performance Measures and Results (Action Item) (Pages 2-8)
2020 - Mission Statement and Performance Measures (Action Item) (Pages 9-16)

2019 - Public Authorities Report (Action Item) (Pages 17-64)

Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy (Action Item) (Pages 65-70)

Re-Adopt Policies & Charters

© % o

10.
I1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18,

Investment & Deposit Policy (Action Item) (Pages 71-78)

Procurement Policy (Action Item) (Pages 79-82)

Whistleblower Policy and Procedures (Action Item) (Pages 83-85)

Defense & Indemnification Policy (Action Item) (Page 86)

Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Action Item) (Pages 87-91)

Governance Committee Charter (Action Item) (Pages 92-95)

Property Disposition Guidelines (Action Item) (Pages 96-102)

Real Property Acquisition Policy (Action Item) (Pages 103-104)

Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy (Action Item) (Page 105)
Employee Compensation Program (Action Item) (Pages 106-107)

Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy (Action Item) (Pages 108-114)

Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Action Item) (Pages 115-117)
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members (Action Item) (Page 118)
Corporate Credit Card Policy (Action Item) (Pages 119-122)



6.0 Management Team Reports:

6.1 2019 Year in Review

7.0 Adjournment- Next Meeting April 22, 2020 (Annual Meeting)



Draft
Subject to Board Approval

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA)

DATE AND PLACE:

LIVE STREAMED:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

February 26, 2020, at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency
(the “ECIDA” or “Agency”), 95Perry Street, 5% Floor ESD
Conference Room, Buffalo, New York 14203

This Board meeting is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
Agency’s website at www.ecidany.com.

Denise Abbott, Hon. Diane Benczkowski, Rev. Mark E. Blue, Hon.
Bryon W. Brown, Hon. Joseph H. Emminger, Tyra Johnson-Hux,
Brenda W. McDuffie, Hon. Glenn R. Nellis, Hon. Mark C. Poloncarz,
Hon. Darius G. Pridgen, Sister Denise Roche, Kenneth A. Schoetz and
Art Wingerter

James F. Doherty, Dottie Gallagher, Hon. Howard Johnson, Hon.
Brian J. Kulpa, Richard Lipsitz, Jr., and Charles F. Specht

Steve Weathers, Chief Executive Officer; John Cappellino, Executive
Vice President; Atiqa Abidi, Assistant Treasurer; Gerald Manhard,
Chief Lending Officer; Daryl Spulecki, Credit Analyst; Beth O’Keefe,
Business Development Officer; Dawn Boudreau, Assistant Treasurer;
Robert G. Murray, Esq., General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC; and
Grant Lesswing, Business Development Officer

Kevin Zanner, Hurwitz & Fine; Maria Whyte, Deputy County
Executive; Andrew Federick, Erie County Senior Economic
Development Specialist

There being a quorum present at 12:16 p.m., the meeting of the ECIDA Board of
Directors was called to order by its Chair, Ms. McDuffie.

MINUTES

The minutes of the January 22, 2020 meeting of the members were presented. Mr.
Poloncarz moved and Mr. Blue seconded, to approve of the minutes. Ms. McDuffie called for
the vote, and the minutes were then unanimously approved.

Page 1 of 4

3



REPORTS/ACTION ITEMS/INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Abidi presented the January 2020 financial report, noting that the
balance sheet shows that the Agency ended 2019 with total assets of $30.0 million and net assets
of $22.6 million, reflecting net income of $507,000 for the year. As a reminder, the draft 2019
financial statements will be reviewed in detail at the Finance and Audit Committee meeting on
March 9, 2020 and presented to this Board at the March 25, 2020 meeting. The Agency finished
the month of January with total assets of $29.6 million and net assets of $22.5 million. The
monthly income statement shows an operating loss of $144,000 for January. Operating revenue
of $76,000 was under budget by about $156,000. Operating expenses of $220,000 were about
$9,000 under budget. After depreciation, there was a net loss of $155,000 for the month. Ms.
McDuffie directed that the report be received and filed.

Governance Committee Update. Ms. McDuffie presented this report. Ms. McDuffie
directed that the report be received and filed.

Policy Committee Update. Mr. Weathers presented this report. Ms. McDuffie directed
that the report be received and filed.

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

Barcalo Living & Commerce/Barcalo Buffalo, LLC

At this point in time, Mr. Brown joined the meeting.

Mr. Cappellino then reviewed the proposed project which entails the adaptive re-use of
the former 175,000 sq. ft. Barcalo Manufacturing plant in the Old First Ward into a mixed-use
structure containing approximately 30,000 sq. ft. of commercial and light industrial space and
118 residential units.

As a condition precedent of receiving Financial Assistance, and as a material term or
condition established by the Agency in connection with its approval of the Project, Mr.
Cappellino noted that the Company must, subject to potential modification, termination and/or
recapture of Financial Assistance for failure to meet and maintain the commitments and
thresholds as described below, submit, on an annual basis or as otherwise indicated below
through the conclusion of the later of two (2) years following either (i) the construction
completion date, or (ii) the termination of the Agent Agreement, a certification, as so required by
the Agency, confirming:

(1) Investment Commitment- the total investment actually made with respect to the
Project at the time of Project completion equals or exceeds $29,518,332.00
(which represents the product of 85% multiplied by $34,727,449.00, being the
total project cost as stated in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance).

(ii) Employment Commitment - that there are at least nine (9) existing full time
equivalent (“FTE”) employees located at, or to be located at, the Facility as stated
in the Company’s application for Financial Assistance (the “Baseline FTE”); and

Page 2 of 4

4



e the number of current FTE employees in the then current year at the Facility;
and

o that the Company has maintained and created FTE employment at the Facility
equal to 34 FTE employees [representing the product of 85% multiplied by 30
(being the 25 new FTE employee positions plus 10 new part-time equivalent
(“PTE”) employees (with 2 PTE employees counting as 1 FTE employee) as
proposed to be created by the Company as stated in the Company’s
application for Financial Assistance)]. In an effort to confirm and verify the
Company’s employment numbers, the Agency requires that, at a minimum,
the Company provide employment data on a quarterly basis to the Agency,
said information to be provided on the Agency’s “Quarterly Employment
Survey” form to be made available to the Company by the Agency.

(iiiy Local Labor Commitment - that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Local Labor Workforce Certification Policy on a quarterly basis during
the construction period.

(iv)  Equal Pay Commitment — that the Company adheres to and complies with the
Agency’s Pay Equity Policy.

V) Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy Commitment — that the Company is compliant
with the Agency’s Unpaid Real Property Tax Policy.

General discussion ensued.

Mr. Brown confirmed the Company’s pledge to work towards a goal of 25% MWBE
participation.

Mr. Brown moved and Mr. Pridgen seconded to approve the Project as proposed. Ms.
McDuffie then called for the vote and the following resolution was unanimously approved:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY: (i) ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF BARCALO BUFFALO
LLC, AND/OR INDIVIDUAL(S) OR AFFILIATE(S), SUBSIDIARY(IES), OR
ENTITY(IES) FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON ITS BEHALF
(INDIVIDUALLY, AND/OR COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”) IN
CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT DESCRIBED BELOW; (ii)
RATIFYING THE SCHEDULING, NOTICING, AND CONDUCTING OF A
PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT; (iii) MAKING
A DETERMINATION PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY REVIEW ACT; (iv) APPOINTING THE COMPANY, OR ITS
DESIGNEE, AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE THE PROJECT; (v)
AUTHORIZING THE UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT TO PROVIDE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN THE FORM OF (A) A
SALES TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS
RELATED TO THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF
THE PROJECT, AND (B) A MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION

Page 3 of 4

5



BENEFIT FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE PROJECT; AND (vi)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A LEASE
AGREEMENT, LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, AN AGENT AND FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROJECT AGREEMENT, AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

MANAGEMENT TEAM REPORT

Mr. Weathers noted that the JLDC has released an RFP for a spec building at the
Bethlehem Steel site.

Mr. Weathers confirmed the Agency recovered $1 million from the Gemcor Escrow Fund
which will be deposited within the Agency’s UDAG Fund.

Mr. Weathers then asked Board members to enter into an attorney-client privilege to
discuss a legal matter and to seek advice from its general counsel. Mr. Emminger moved and
Sister Denise seconded to enter into an attorney-client privilege session. Ms. McDuffie called
for the vote and the Agency entered into attorney-client privilege at 12:31 p.m. with only counsel
present. Upon motion made by Mr. Poloncarz and seconded by Mr. Blue, and unanimously
approved, the Agency terminated Executive Session at 12:49 p.m,

There being no further business to discuss, Ms. McDuffie adjourned the meeting of the
Agency at 12:50 p.m.

Dated: February 26, 2020

Karen M. Fiala, Secretary

Page 4 of 4

6



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Financial Statements
As of February 29, 2020




ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ("ECIDA")
Balance Sheet
February 29, 2020

February 2020 January 2020 December 2019
ASSETS:
Cash * $ 7,302,889 $ 7,259,714 $ 7,576,519
Restricted Cash & Investments * 18,901,825 19,168,578 19,385,789
Due from Affiliates 620,841 587,374 553,651
Due from Buffalo Urban Development Corp. 133,113 127,411 114,751
Other Receivables 185,283 185,579 144 311
Total Current Assets 27,143,950 27,328,656 27,775,021
Grants Receivable 331,434 331,434 331,434
Venture Capital Investments, net of reserves 634,061 634,061 634,061
Capital Assets 1,337,341 1,348,174 1,358,104
Total Long-Term Assets 2,302,836 2,313,670 2,323,599
TOTAL ASSETS 3 29,446,787 $ 29,642,326 $ 30,098,620
LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Accounts Payable & Accrued Exp. $ 199,219 $ 302,481 $ 390,971
Deferred Revenues 251,328 243,708 243,708
Other Payables 56,294 56,294 56,294
Funds Held on Behalf of Others 6,576,232 6,572,836 6,785,657
Total Liabilities 7,083,072 7,175,318 7,476,629
Net Assets 22,363,715 22,467,008 22,621,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 3 29,446,787 $ 29,642,326 $ 30,098,620

Cash and restricted cash is invested in checking accounts at M&T Bank. The maximum FDIC insured amount =
$250,000 with the remainder of the cash balance collateralized with government obligations by the financial

institution.



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ("ECIDA")
Income Statement

Month of February 2020
[ Actual vs. Budget
Actual Budget Variance
REVENUES:
Administrative Fees $ 224890 $ 158,333 $ 66,557
Affiliate Management Fees 43,250 43,375 (125)
Interest Income - Cash & Investments 9,384 8,750 634
Rental Income 19,877 19,875 2
Other Income - 1,333 (1,333)
Total Revenues 297,402 231,667 65,735
EXPENSES:
Salaries & Benefits $ 157,917 $ 170,137 $ (12,220)
General Office Expenses 28,262 21,542 6,720
Building Operating Costs 21,813 19,380 2,433
Professional Services 10,051 8,042 2,009
Public Hearings & Marketing 8,836 6,250 2,586
Travel, Mileage & Meeting Expenses 9,614 5,250 4,364
Other Expenses 630 833 (203)
Total Expenses 237,123 231,434 5,689
SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Revenues $ 800 §$ 13,350 § (12,550)
Expenses (1,539) (10,417) 8,878
(739) 2,933 (3,672)
NET INCOME/LOSS) BEFORE OTHER STRATEGIC
INVESTMENTS & DEPRECIATION: 59,540 3,166 56,374
OTHER STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS AND INITIATIVES:
Zero Net Energy costs (Z7+) (52,160) 52,160

Bethlehem Steel Industrial Park Grant (80,000) (80,000) -
Bethlehem Steel Industrial Park Grant Reimb -

Buffalo Building Reuse Project (BUDC)

Canadian Lead Generation (IBN) (72,000) (72,000) -
UDAG Gain/(Loss) on Venture investments - - -
Other Strategic Initiatives - (5,000) 5,000
(152,000) (209,160) 57,160
NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION: (92,460) (205,994) 113,534
Depreciation (10,833) (10,833) 0
NET INCOME/(LOSS): $ (103,293) §$ (216,827) $ 113,534




REVENUES:
Administrative Fees
Affiliate Management Fees
Interest Income - Loans
Interest Income - Cash & Investments
Rental Income
Other Income
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Salaries & Benefits
General Office Expenses
Building Operating Costs
Professional Services
Public Hearings & Marketing
Travel, Mileage & Meeting Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Revenues
Expenses

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ("ECIDA")

Income Statement

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE OTHER STRATEGIC

INVESTMENTS & DEPRECIATION:

OTHER STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS AND INITIATIVES:

Zero Net Energy costs (Z7+)
Bethlehem Steel Industrial Park Grant
Buffalo Building Reuse Project (BUDC)
Canadian Lead Generation {IBN)
Other Strategic Initiatives

NET INCOME/LLOSS) BEFORE DEPREC:
Depreciation

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

Year to Date: February 29, 2020
| Actual vs. Budget Actual vs, Prior Year
Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Variance
$ 227,890 $ 316,667 $ (88,777) $ 227,890 $ 163,065 $ 64,825
86,500 86,750 (250) 86,500 80,700 5,800
- - - - 18 (18)
19,055 17,500 1,555 19,055 18,881 173
39,755 39,750 5 39,755 39,388 367
- 2,667 (2,667) - - -
373,200 463,333 (90,134) 373,200 302,053 71,147
332,852 340,275 (7.423) 332,852 317,540 15,312
51,721 43,083 8,638 51,721 65,731 (14,010)
38,100 38,760 (660) 38,100 40,765 (2,665)
10,051 18,202 (8,241) 10,051 8,230 1,822
10,170 12,500 (2,330) 10,170 2,767 7,403
13,566 10,500 3,066 13,566 14,340 (773)
730 1,667 (937) 730 768 (38)
457,191 465,076 (7,886) 457,191 450,141 7,050
920 26,700 (25,780) 920 74,765 (73,845)
(1,539) (20,833) 19,295 (1,539) (32,784) 31,246
(619) 5,867 (6,485) (619) 41,981 (42,599)
$ (84,610) § 4,124 $ (88,733) $ (84,610) $ (106,107) & 21,498
$ - $ (625917) $ 625917 $ - $ - 3 -
(80,000) (300,000) 220,000 (80,000) {80,000) -
- (100,000) 100,000 - (100,000) 100,000
(72,000) (72,000) - (72,000) - (72,000)
- (160,000) 160,000 - - -
(152,000) (1,257,917) 1,105,917 (152,000) (180,000) 28,000
(236,610) (1,253,793) 1,017,183 (236,610) (286,107) 49,498
(21,667) (21,667) 0 (21,667) (21,600) (67)
$ (258,276) § (1,275.460) $ 1,017,183 $  (258,276) $ (307,707) % 49,431

10



To: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Board of Directors
From: Michael Szukala, Chair THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY
Date: March 25, 2020

Re: Finance & Audit Committee Report

In accordance with its Committee Charter, the Finance & Audit Committee is required to “report
its actions and recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the Board following a
meeting of the Finance and Audit Committee and when otherwise requested by the Board”. This
report is prepared to satisfy this requirement.

A joint meeting of the ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Finance & Audit Committee was held on March 9,
2020. Committee members present were: Michael Szukala, Chair, Glenn Nellis, Art Wingerter and
William Witzleben. The following items were reviewed:

1) Freed Maxick CPAs Report including Draft 2019 Audited Financial Statements
The Agency’s auditors presented the Draft 2019 Audited Financial Statements for ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC (copies of which are included in respective Board packages).

¢ Auditors expressed an unmodified (clean) opinion:
The auditors expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements. This type of
opinion indicates that the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the corporations as of December 31, 2019 and the changes in
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

¢ No uncorrected audit adjustments were noted.

¢ No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal controls noted.

2) Public Authorities 2019 Report
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the Public Authorities 2018 Report
required under the Public Authorities Law and recommended that it be approved by their
respective Boards.

3) 2019 Investment Reports
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the 2019 Investment Reports, which are
required under the Public Authorities Law and recommended that they be approved by
their respective Boards.

4) Investment and Deposit Policy (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee reviewed the Investment and Deposit Policy and
recommended that it be approved by their respective Boards.

5) Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee reviewed the joint Committee Charter and
recommended that it be approved by their respective Boards.

6) Corporate Credit Card Policy (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the Corporate Credit Card policy and
reviewed the card activity over the past year as required by the policy.

Erie County Industrial Development Agency * 95 Perry Street, Suite 403 + Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 - fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

11



7) Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation
The joint Finance & Audit Committee prepared a report that documents the Committee’s
activities for 2019 as required under the Public Authorities Law.

8) The Committee reviewed Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal
Controls, a document prepared by management based on internal control processes and
procedures of the organization. The document will be posted on the website as required
by the ABO.

9) The Committee reviewed a document entitled “The Strategic Audit Committee” by

Deloitte’s Center for Board Effectiveness to satisfy the educational requirements set forth
in the Finance & Audit Committee Charter.

12



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)

2019 Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee, as mandated under Section
2825 of the New York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) providing
assistance to members of the Agency in fulfilling their fiduciary responsibilities relating to
accounting, reporting, and regulatory compliance practices; (ii) maintaining, through regular
meetings, direct communication between the members of the Agency and the Agency’s independent
accountants and auditors; (iii) maintaining direct communication between members of the Agency
and the governmental authorities having audit authority or fiscal oversight of the Agency; (iv)
approving the budget of the Agency for submission to the Board; (v) approving and/or directing the
transfers of moneys under the budget; (vi) recommending to the Board the level of cash reserves
and the level of fund balances of the Agency.

Pen

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments

1. Are the members of the Finance & Audit X 0 d
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and do individuals appointed to
the Finance & Audit Committee possess
the necessary skills to understand the
duties and functions of the Finance & Audit
Committee and are familiar with corporate
financial and accounting practices?

X
[
L]

2. Is each member of the Finance & Audit
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Finance & Audit
Committee members, who are members of
the Agency, comply with the conflict of
interest provisions applicable to public
officers under Article 18 of the New York
General Municipal Law?

3. Did the Finance & Audit Committee meeta | [X ] [] | The Finance & Audit
minimum of twice each calendar year? Committee met on
2/20/19 (no quorum),
2/27119, 3/21/19,
7/16/19, 8/22/19,
9/16/19, and 10/9/19.

13



Finance & AuditCommittee Self-Evaluation

4. Were meeting notices and agendas
prepared for each meeting and provided to
Finance & Audit Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

Yes

Pen

ding

Comments

5. Did the Finance & Audit Committee
develop the Agency's audit practices,
which should address independent
auditors and financial statements; internal
controls, compliance, and risk assessment;
special investigations; and other
responsibilities?

See Questions #6-#10
below.

6. Did the Finance & Audit Committee:

(a) Recommend to the Board the appointment
of independent auditors, establish the
compensation to be paid to the auditors,
and provide oversight of the audit services
provided by the independent auditor?

(b) Establish procedures for the engagement of
the independent auditors to provide
permitted audited services?

(c) Review and approve the Agency’s audited
financial statements, associated
management letter, and all other auditor
communications?

(d) Review significant accounting and reporting
issues and understand their impact on the
financial statements of the Agency?

(e) Meet with the Agency’s independent auditor
at least annually to discuss the financial
statements of the Agency and any issues
that may have arisen during the audit?

(f) Review and discuss any significant risks
reported in the independent audit and
assess the responsiveness of
management’s follow-up activities regarding
same?

In February of 2019,
Freed Maxick completed
audits of the ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC for the
year ended 12/31/18.
The auditors issued an
unmodified (clean)
opinion that the
statements fairly
presented the financial
position of the above
referenced corporations/
fund. The auditors also
indicated that the audits
did not uncover any
material weaknesses in
internal control and there
were no instances of
non-compliance with
generally accepted
accounting principles.

14



Pen

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments
7. Did the Finance & Audit Committee review | [X] ] [ ] | Perthe March 2019
management's assessment of the audit reports, no
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal significant weaknesses
controls and review the actions taken by in internal controls were
management on the independent noted.
accountants’ and auditors’ suggestions for
correcting weaknesses in the Agency's
internal controls, regulatory compliance,
and organizational structure and
operations?
8. Did the Finance & Audit Committee: X | O | O | The ECIDA adopted a
(a) Ensure that the Agency has a confidential Whistleblower Policy in
mechanism for individuals to report March of 2012. The
suspected fraudulent activities, allegations Policy describes the
of corruption, fraud, criminal activity, process for reporting
conflicts of interest by directors, officers, or suspected fraudulent
employees of the Agency or anyone activities and describes
having business dealings with the Agency? the protections afforded
(b) Develop procedures for the receipt, to individuals who report
retention, investigation, or referral of susfp'e'cted fraudulgnt
) . Lo activities. The Policy
complaints concerning accounting, internal
controls, and auditing? was re-adopted by the
) Board of Directors on
(c) Request and oversee special 3/27/19.
investigations as needed or refer specific
issues to the Board or appropriate
committee for further investigation?
9. Did the Finance & Audit Committee obtain | XI | [ | [J | On3/21/19, the

information and training needed to
enhance the committee members’
understanding of the role of the
independent auditor, the risk management
process, internal controls, and appropriate
level of familiarity in financial reporting
standards and processes?

Committee reviewed an
article entitled,
“Overseeing the
External Auditors”
published by the
Governance Insights
Center.

15




Pen

‘Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes' No ding Comments
10. Did the Finance & Audit Committee: X | 0 | 0 | on3/27/19, the Audit &
(a) Report its actions and recommendations to Finance Committee
the Board? reported on its activities

to the ECIDA Board of

(b) Report to the Board at least annually Directors. These

regarding any changes to the Finance &

. . activities included the:
AUdI"( Committee Chafter? (1) Audit & Finance
(c) Provide a self-evaluation to the Board on Committee self-
an annual basis? evaluation; (2) Audit &
(d) Report to the Board at least annually on Finance Committee
the findings of its independent auditors? Charter; (3) draft 2018

financial statements
audited by Freed
Maxick; (4) Corporate
Credit Card Policy; (5)
2018 Public Authorities
Annual Report; (6)
Investment & Deposit
Policy; and (7) 2018
Investment Report.

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

In addition to the above:

e During its 3/21/19 meeting, the Committee reviewed drafts of the 2018 audited
financial statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC. The Committee also reviewed
the 2018 PAAA Annual Report, 2018 Investment Reports, Investment & Deposit
Policy, Finance & Audit Committee Charter, Corporate Credit Card Policy, and the
2018 Finance & Audit Self-Evaluation.

e During its 7/16/19 meeting, the Committee discussed the rationale for calculating the
ECIDA’s administrative fees. The Committee also discussed other options for
collecting administrative fees and the generation of new fees. The Committee voted to
keep the ECIDA’s current schedule for collecting administrative fees.

e During its 8/22/19 meeting, ECIDA staff discussed the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC budget
review process and the timelines for obtaining approval for those budgets. The
Committee also reviewed drafts of the 2020 ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and
capital budgets and three-year forecasts.

¢ During its 9/16/19 meeting, the Committee reviewed drafts of the 2020 ECIDA, RDC,
and ILDC operating and capital budgets and three-year forecasts. The Committee also
approved an extension for Freed Maxick to provide auditing services to the ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC in 2019.

e During the 10/9/19 meeting, Freed Maxick reviewed the ECIDA’s 2019 Audit Plan.
The Committee also approved a motion to allow Freed Maxick to expand its scope of
services to conduct additional testing to satisfy the annual certification of the RDC’s
Revolving Loan Fund.

16



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRiAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

17



XXXXX XX, 2020

To the Members of the Board of Directors

Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation

95 Perry Street, Suite 403

Buffalo, New York 14203

Members of the Board: A
'g( "‘».«

We are pleased to present this report related to; ‘our aud%s of. the financial statements of Erie County
Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) Buffalo ”énd Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (ILDC), and Buffalo and Eﬂe County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2019’ This feport symmarizes certain matters required by professional
standards to be communicated to, you m/i]@ur aversight responsibility for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's financial
reporting process. .

This report is intended s@iely for“fﬂeunfomaatlon and use of ECIDA/ILDC/RDC and management and is
not intended to be ang’ should not be:used ’By anyone other than these specified parties. It will be our
pleasure to respond to any questlons 'you have about this report. We appreciate the opportunity to be of
service fo ECIDA/ILDCIRDC A

Very truly yours,

Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

18



CONTENTS

Required Communications
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Management Letter

Exhibit A — Significant Written Communication Between Management and our Firm

Representation Letter

o

19



Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditors Communications with Those Charge with
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those charged
with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding the
financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your
responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Area Comments
Our Responsibilities with Regard to ‘the Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
Financial Statement Audit accepted Iin the United States of America and

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, have been
described to you in our arrangement letter dated January
6, 2020. Our audit of the financial statements does not
relieve management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities which are also described in that letter.

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of We have lssued a separate communication regarding the

the Financial Statement Audit planned scope and timing of our audit and have discussed
with you our ldehﬁﬁcatlon of and planned audit response
to mgm’ﬁcant risks of, materlal misstatement.

Accounting Policies and Practices PA-'eferablhty\ of Accountmg Policies and Practices

Under generally accepted principles, in certain
cnrcumstances management may select among
. alternative, accountlng practices. In our view, in such
cinwmstances management has selected the preferable
accounﬁng practice.

V\ Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

g&rﬁlgyfﬁﬂanagement has the ultimate responsibility for the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used by
ECIDA/ILDC/RDC. ECIDA/ILDC/RDC did not adopt any
significant new accounting policies nor have there been
any changes in existing significant accounting policies
during the current year.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions
or significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by
management in formulating particularly sensitive
accounting estimates and about our conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached “Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates.”

Basis of Accounting The financial statements were prepared on assumption
that the entity will continue as a going concern.

20



Required Communications (Continued)

Area

Comments

Audit Adjustments

Uncorrected Misstatement

Disagreements with Management

Consultations with Other Accountants

Significant Issues Discussed with Management

Significant  Difficulties Encountered in

Performing the Audit

Significant Written Communication Between
Management and Our Firm

2f

A

. oF a*

We are not aware of nor have we proposed any audit
adjustments as a result of our audit,

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other
than misstatements that are clearly trivial.

We encountered no disagreements with management over
the application of significant accounting principles, the
basis for management's judgments on any significant
matters, the scope of the audit, or significant disclosures
to be included in the financial statements.

We are not aware of any consultations management had
with other accountants about accounting or auditing
matters.

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed
with or were ‘the subject of correspondence with
management.

We did not encounter -g@hy significant difficulties in dealing
with management during the audit.

A ec‘:py‘;ff\df the representation letter provided to us by
manageément is attached as Exhibit A.

4

ez

21



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management's current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience
about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to monitor throughout the
year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The following describes the significant
accounting estimates reflected in the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC’s December 31, 2019, financial statements:

Management’s
Estimate Accounting Policy Estimation Process

Basis for Our Conclusions on
Reasonableness of Estimate

Depreciation of o . .
Property, Plant & Management depreciates Useful lives were

. property, plant and equipment  assigned based on
Equipment (ECIDA over thg estimated li\?espof the ECIDA/ILDC's useful
& ILDC) assets. life policy. :

Management was
consistent in -
calculating depreciatlon
based on-the usefut,
lives qss:gned to eaéh
asset

Allowance for Management estimates £ Management reviews
Uncollectible collectability of receivables S »-..prior year \@te-off
Accounts based on knowledge of past *, 3 inifg )fmatlon and loan
history. 5 vpaymeni Histories and
* ‘yses this to estimate
“fhe allowance needed
it the current year for
.the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC.

Investments Inveéﬁnents are‘«\(aluea a!: fair Management has
(ECIDA) valueg, Fair value Ii the price described the valuation
that W@uld be recgived to sell techniques used for
an asset‘qr pald"to transfer a valuing investments at

liability in an: dﬁderly fair value in the
transaction bétween market financial statements
participants at the ECIDA Note 7.
measurement date. Additionally,
Additionaily, ECIDA management has
recognizes investments in broken out the
accordance with GASB investments into Level
Statement No. 72, “Fair Value 1, 2 or 3 based upon
Measurements” as it defines the valuation hierarchy.

the fair value and establishes
a valuation hierarchy for
disclosure of the inputs to
valuation used to measure fair
value. This hierarchy
prioritizes the inputs into three
broad levels of Level 1, 2 or 3.

22

The methods and lives used to
estimate depreciation expense
appears reasonable.

Management's process to
estimate the allowance for
uncoliectible accounts appears
reasonable.

Management's process to
evaluate fair value and establish
the fair value hierarchy of
investments appears reasonable.



Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC. The ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's
management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC’s financial
statements. However, the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC plans to implement all standards by the required dates. The Statements
which might impact the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC are as follows:

Summary of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

This Statement issued in June 2017 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC with its fiscal year ending December 31,
2020. This Statement better meets the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefuiness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provision of
the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’
leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting perlods beglnnlng after December 15, 2019. Earlier
application is encouraged. R

Summary of GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Iiai‘erest Cost Incurred
Before the End of a Construction Period

This Statement issued in June 2018 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC beginning with its fiscal year ending
December 31, 2020. The primary objectives of this® @atgment are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of
information about capital assets and the cost of borrewing ff@r a reportlng period and (2) to simplify accounting for
interest cost incurred before the end of a constructlon p@nod s

This Statement establishes accounting reqdlremghts for‘i:aierest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Such interest cost includes all interegt that préviously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of
paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, €geifj ion of Aéeounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AIGPA 7‘,? 5uncements which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement
requires that interest cost incurfed beﬁ@re tha. end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period
in which the cost is mcurred for financial & temeﬁts prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result, interest cost mcurreﬁ*before the of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a
capital asset reported in a busmgss-type E ivity or enterprise fund.

This Statement also relterates ‘that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost iAcurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an
expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of GASB Statement No. 89 are effective for financial periods beginning after December 15, 20189.
Earlier application is encouraged.

23



Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

Summary of GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

This Statement issued in May 2019 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC beginning with its fiscal year ending
December 31, 2021. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2)
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves
those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing standards for accounting
and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.

The requirements of GASB Statement No. 91 are effective for financial periods beginning after December 15, 2020.

Earlier application is encouraged.

Pty
A

HHT

24



FreedVaxick: PAs,PC.

XXXXX XX, 2020

The Finance & Audit Committees, Boards of Directors, and Management
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements of Efie County Industrial Development Agency
(ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation, ahd Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (collectively, ECIDA/ILDC/RDC), busmesﬁs-type&achwtles as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards gene‘a:ally accep‘ted in the United States of America, we
considered the Organizations' internal control over financial regerting (internal eontrol) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpo§e of expressing our opinions on the separate
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opmlon on the effectiveness of the Organizations’
internal control. .

A deficiency in internal control exists when the deSign ot operah@n of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigfied functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material.- weakne& |s’fa deficiéncy, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable passrbi iy that axmaterlal misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on g timely basls

‘( B Az B /

Our consideration of internal control was ti;r{he Ilmlted 'purpose described in the first paragraph and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in interfigl ‘contrdl that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify an‘yrﬁeﬁmenc@s ininte nal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may e*)'fist that havetnpt been identified.

This communication is mtended,solely fof the information and use of management, the Finance & Audit Committees,
Boards of Directors, and others V\@nn/ECIDA/lLDC/RDC it is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Yo

Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

25



EXHIBIT A — SIGNIFICANT WRITTEN COMMUNICATION
BETWEEN MANAGEMENT/AND OUR FIRM

26



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DE ELOPMENT
AGENCY

DECEMBER 31, 2019

27



28



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-8
Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position 9
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 10
Statements of Cash Flows 11
Notes to Financial Statements 12-20

Suppiementary Information:

Combining Statement of Net Position / . \ 21
{ 4

; 4
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenseis- nd( iti 22

23-24

29



&
v

,//"" X

i
P

“THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY L F%NK**
/"/,7'};/ fl\ o
Lo o

\\ "t:/

30



FINANCIAL SECTI

31



X
N

“THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEF\T*%ANK**

32



= F reedMaxickieas rc.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Erie Count ;ndustnal Development Agency (the ECIDA),
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the m?ated notes to the financial statements which
collectively comprise the ECIDA’s basic financial statements as liste dvm the table > of contents.
e\
P Vv

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair pres'éq en of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unite States of Nnenca this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the prepa Q%pd fair pﬁeientatlon of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

- /:,

Our responsibility is to express an opinj von the; financi statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards gehgts IIy,aécept&d in'the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Go%nt\%:grtmg Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan orm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from m(alal miss aiémeht

,r

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement;, :

Auditor’'s Responsibility

An audit involves performlng cedurejs)o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures se degend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial stz%r?’ts whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

ECIDA, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

33



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on/th
accompanymg supplementary information, as listed in the table of conte @@resented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the financial statements. ﬁ\g; \: .
p :

Such information is the responsibility of management and was’derlved from' \d relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial stqtements Ahe informatitn has been subjected to the audltlng
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and ceé i additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounﬁng and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves,,_ and other\addltlonal procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of vf;_in‘our ion, the supplementary information, as listed in
the table of contents, is fairly stated, in all matenal resp\ec\ts /vmﬂgw to the financial statements as a whole.

\
Other Reporting Required by Govemnynt“ﬂulidtjtmg ndards
In accordance with Government Au Staﬁdemswe‘?have also issued our report dated XXXX, 2020 on our
consideration of the ECIDA’s internal cbntrefwbver financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, mﬁh'acts, and -grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testifig of interaal co l over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinignion effectlve s ofthe ECIDA’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral paﬁ an audit pefformed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
ECIDA’s internal control over ncnal re |ng and compliance.

Buffalo, New York
XOOXXXXX, 2020

& FreedMaxickesas ec.

34



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation that provides tax
incentives, financing programs, international trade assistance, land development and other economic
development services to the City of Buffalo (the City) and Erie County, New York (the County). In
accomplishing its mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding from Federal, State, County or
local sources. Instead, ECIDA relies primarily upon administrative fees charged to those businesses that
utilize its products and services.

As a public benefit corporation, ECIDA is required to comply with accounting standards issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Under GASB tatement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Sta and Local Governments, ECIDA is
required to present management’s discussion and analysis (MQ&ﬁ*) to assist readers in understanding
ECIDA's financial performance. i \ -

£ N

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 34, we present the attached overvie ?é/nd analysis of the financial
activities of ECIDA as of and for the years ended Decémiber 344 2019, 2018 and 2017. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here ‘in ;:ct|on with ECIDA’s audited financial
statements. a ¢

e

Basic Overview of the Financial Statements f‘\ -\\ \/

Included in this Annual Report are the foHawsmg finafi

\
1 statements

1) Statements of Net Posﬂlon‘/ oT he s%tement ef net position show the reader what ECIDA owns
(assets and deferred outﬂuqs of ;eﬁources) d what ECIDA owes (liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources). The differenceBetiveen ECIDA’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resour "'E (net posntlon) can be one way to measure ECIDA’s financial
position. Over tipie, increa §\or e%: feases in ECIDA’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial healtl;is.improving 'ﬁete riorating.

\\

2) Statements of Re?rq_nues ixpenses and Changes in Net Position — This statement reports
ECIDA’s operating aqd onoperating revenues by major source along with operating and
nonoperating expenses.The difference between total revenues and expenses can be one way to
measure ECIDA’s operating results for the year.

3) Statements of Cash Flows — This statement reports ECIDA’s cash flows from operating, capital and
related financing, and investing activities.

Financial Highlights

ECIDA’s total net position increased by 2% from $22,115,000 in 2018 to $22,622,000 in 20189,
ECIDA experienced an increase in net position of $507,000 in 2019 compared to an increase of
$457,000 in 2018.

e Administrative fees, a key source of revenue for ECIDA, increased 32% from $1,201,000 in 2018
to $1,591,000 in 2019.
Net special project grants decreased to $853,000 in 2019 from $1,084,000 in 2018.
Operating expenses decreased 3% from $2,927,000 in 2018 to $2,827,000 in 2019.

35



Condensed Comparative Financial Statements:
1. Statements of Net Position:

The following table (Table 1) presents condensed comparative financial information and was derived from
the audited statements of net position of ECIDA.

Table 1
Statements of Net Position at December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017
(Amounts in thousands)

2019 2018 $ Change % Change 2017
Assets:
Cash $ 19,023 § 17,302 $ 1,721 10% $ 17,034
Loans receivable, net of allowance 56 97 @1 -42% 147
Capital assets, net 1,358 1,444 7> 86) -6% 1,561
Other assets 1,722 3, 574/{ 7 (1,852) 52% 10,421
Restricted cash 7,939 7, 3 k. 566 8% 4,655
‘=‘;
Total assets $ 30,008 $ /29 790 $ '\“-\ 308 1% $ 33,818
SO
Liabilities: ;
Current liabilities $ 691 $\ ,1/,377 $ (686) -50% $ 7,051
Funds held on behalf of others 6 786\ VB 242 544 9% 5,015
Other long-term liabilities - \ \ 56 (56) ~-100% 94
\
Total liabilities \%‘ 477 7 ﬂ 5 (198) -3% 12,160
Ny A
L /
Net position: A 4
Investment in capital assets 1, 5““ 1,444 86) 6% 1,561
Restricted % ‘e 3,008 12,131 878 7% 10,980
Unrestricted o 47 =855 8,540 (285) -3% 9,117
Total net position 22,622 22,115 507 2% 21,658
£ Y “"’}
Total liabilities and | posmon o ‘ $ 30,099 $ 29790 $ 309 1% $ 33,818

X N i i
\"\tff//
Cash — ECIDA’s cash balance increased 10% or $1,721,000 primarily due to the collection of $1,883,000
of grants receivable and an overall change in net position of $507,000.

Loans Receivable - Loans receivable represents conduit receivables. The $41,000 decrease in the loans
receivable balance is due to conduit loan repayments received during 2019,

Restricted Cash (Funds held on behalf of others) — Restricted cash consists primarily of funds held on
behalf of others including the Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment fund, Regional Redevelopment fund,
PILOT Increment Financing (PIF) funds and the Regionally Significant Project funds. The $566,000 or 8%
increase from 2018 is due to increases of $805,000 in the Main Street Improvement District fund, $607,000
increase in the Seneca Street Corridor District fund, and $306,000 in the Regional Redevelopment fund,
coupled with a decrease of $1,067,000 in the Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund as a result of
temporary borrowings by Buffalo Urban Development Corporation.

Other Assets — Other assets include ECIDA’s grants receivable, venture capital investments, affiliate
receivables, prepaid expenses, and other receivables. The decrease in other assets of $1,852,000 from
2018 to 2019 is primarily due to a decrease in grants receivable of $1,883,000, as cash was received during
the year. This decrease was offset by a $29,000 increase in other receivables. The decrease in other assets
between 2017 and 2018 also related mainly to a decrease in grants receivable of $5,078,000.

36



Current Liabilities — The $686,000 decrease in current liabilities from 2018 to 2019 is primarily due to a
$398,000 decrease in unearned revenue related to grant funds awarded but not yet expended and a
$320,000 decrease in accounts payable. The decrease in current liabilities between 2017 and 2018 also
related mainly to a decrease in unearned revenue of $6,024,000.

Other Long-Term Liabilities — Other long-term liabilities primarily consist of conduit debt and decreased
due to payments on loan participation agreements made in 2019.

2, Change in Net Position:

The following table (Table 2) presents condensed, comparative financial information and was derived from
ECIDA’s audited statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

Table 2
Change in Net Position for the Years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017

(Amounts in thousands)
>

2019 2018 (3 ‘Change %Change 2017
A X\,
&N

Rewvenue: P ¢ N \ .

Administrative fees $ 1,591 $/ 1,201 $ N ago 32% $ 1,963

Affiliate management fees 363 /,,’ 7 429 “*{@6) -15% 391

Other income 3887 570 (182) -32% 386

v

Total revenue $ 2 342 %\ 2,200 $ 142 6% $ 2,740
Expenses:

Salaries and benefits B $ (35) 2% $ 1,991

General and administrative 3 7 4 791 (65) -8% 1,373

Depreciation and other 1_:19 119 - 0% 141

Total expenses 2,927 (100) -3% 3,505
Operating loss before spec gl ra” S (727) 242 -33% (765)
Special grants and non@p

Net special project grar 1,084 (231) 21% (6,405)

Investment income 42 (10} -24% 487

Interest income 58 49 84% 22

Change in net position 4 $ 507 $ 457 $ 50 1% $ (6,661)

37



3. Revenue Analysis:

Administrative Fees — Administrative fees are primarily collected from the issuance of various forms of tax
abatements and tax-exempt financing. ECIDA relies on these fees to cover its operating costs; however,
the amount of fees collected in any given year is largely dependent upon the local economic climate and
the timing between project approval and project commencement. Administrative fees increased $390,000
or 32% in 2019 primarily due to an increase in the number and size of projects from thirteen approved in
2018 to nineteen approved projects in 2019. During 2018, two projects were closed through ILDC that
generated $83,000 of administrative fees that were passed-through to ECIDA. There were no such projects
in 2019.

Affiliate Management Fees — Affiliate management fees represent salaries and overhead costs charged
to the following ECIDA affiliates for services that ECIDA’s employees provide to these organizations:

+ Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC) — a lending corporation affiliated

with ECIDA. g
¢ Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corpofation (ILDC) — a land development
corporation affiliated with ECIDA. ¢ & f-\‘\
The following table (Table 3) illustrates the amounts charg fd_d./éﬁECIDA's a )}ieted corporations in 2019
with comparisons for 2018 and 2017: ol :\
Table 3~ > .7

Affiliate Management Fees for the Years ended‘ﬂéﬁgmber 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017

{Amourtsdnthousands)>.
N
\\Lzoq’f\w>zo1s $ Change % Change 2017
/,’ ’:f\\\\ .
Affiliate Management Fees Charged: /.V" - \
RDC d {7 _$ \ 302 § 352 § (50) -14% $ 369
iLDC \ e 61 77 (16) -21% 22
Total Affiliate Managemsff Fe %\% $ 363 $ 429 § (66) -15% $ 391
4 G N

Affiliate management eis ,charged t .,“;RDC decreased $50,000 or 14% primarily due to staff turnover in
2019. Those charged to ’fﬁ;ﬁ ,\decre /ed $16,000 or 21% due to less ECIDA staff time spent on ILDC'’s

projects during 2019. AN

Other Income - Other incomek‘c’émprised of rental income, international division revenues, loan interest,
and miscellaneous income. The decrease of $182,000 or 32% in 2019 is due mainly to the recovery of a
previously written off loan of $150,000 in 2018 that inflated miscellaneous income for that year.

38



4. Expense Analysis:

Salaries and Benefits — Decrease of $35,000 in 2019 is primarily due to savings in benefits costs and a
decreased amount of temporary labor required during 2019.

General and Administrative — In 2019, General and Administrative expenses decreased $65,000 from
$791,000 to $726,000. Key expense differences in 2019 include the following:

o Consultant expenses decreased $77,000 due a decrease in costs from the sale of a venture capital
investment incurred in 2018.

» Rent expense increased $35,000 due to a full year increase in base rent in 2019, after a partial year of this
increase in 2018.

Depreciation — Depreciation expense was $118,000 for 2019 compared to $116,000 for 2018.

Net Special Project Grants — Net Special Project Grants decrease r(zm a net gain of $1.084,000 in 2018
to a net gain of $853,000 in 2019. In 2019, $1,390,000 was reimbtirsed to ECIDA for the acquisition of
property and certain other costs related to the Bethlehem Stee| project, @s:well as $375,000 from the sale
of property at the site. $500,000 was granted to ILDC for thé€ creation of '§ Workforce Retention Fund in
connection with a land sale at the former Bethlehem Stegl Property. $413,00Q;was also spent on certain
projects, which will be reimbursed in accordance with apj_:!i:,able gfént agreements.
Investment Income — Investment income of $32,000 cons\i‘éés‘]g,f? J\he final portion of a realized gain on one
of ECIDA’s t ital investments that was{pi@wiously sold. ™,
venture cap s@% \V\ \ d‘\;’
,‘\l b 7 ?h 4
y %, s

39



5. Budget Analysis:

ECIDA prepares an annual budget which was presented and approved by the Board of Directors on October
24, 2018. The following table (Table 4) presents an analysis of ECIDA’s performance compared to the
approved 2019 budget.

Table 4
Budget to Actual Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2019
(Amounts in thousands)

Actual Budget $§ Variance % Variance
Revenue:
Administrative fees $ 1,581 % 1,960 $ (369) -19%
Affiliate management fees 363 485 (122) -25%
Other income 388 3504 38 11%
Total revenue 2,342 2785, (453) -16%
Expenses: @
Salaries and benefits 2,103 % (121) 6%
General and administrative //371 3 13 2%
Depreciation and other 7 139 (20) -14%
Total expenses a2 .. 2,955 (128) 4%
Operating income before special - ¥
project grants (160) (325) 203%
Net special project grants (1,092) 1,945 -178%
Investment income - 32 100%
Interest income 30 77 257%
e g
Change in net positi6 et $ 507 $ (1,222) $ 1,729 -141%

U X

‘l .i
Budget to Actual Ana??ﬂs‘* \ f[fj
Overall, ECIDA exceeded its‘t’éz%_af ed increase in net position for 2019 by $1,729,000. Total revenue was
16% below the budgeted amotigt due to the lower number and smaller size of tax incentive projects
approved and closed than budgeted based on a ten-year average. Total expenses were $128,000 below
budget. Net special project grants had a positive variance of $1,945,000 as some of the budgeted special
projects were not funded in 2019, including $1,000,000 of venture capital activity, which was included in

the budget as a placeholder.

6. Economic Factors Impacting ECIDA:

ECIDA relies extensively upon administrative fees to generate the majority of its annual revenue. As a result
of current uncertain economic conditions and potential legislative/board actions, ECIDA’s ability to generate
the administrative fees necessary to support operations may be limited in the future.

7. Requests for Information:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of ECIDA’s finances. Questions

concerning any of the financial information provided in this report should be addressed to the CFO of ECIDA
at (716) 856-6525. General information relating to ECIDA can be found at its website, www.ecidany.com.

40



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Current portion of conduit loans
Current portion of loans
Affiliates
Grants
Other
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Conduit loans receivable
Capital assets, net
Investments
Restricted cash

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of conduit debt
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Conduit debt §
Funds held on behalf o ,

Total noncurrent liabilitieSg,

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

2019 2018
$ 19,023,148 $ 17,301,840
56,204 37,530
- 3177
553,651 562,274
331,434 2214 348
126,649 97,877
76.118 65.877
20,167,294 20282923
56 204
Aféss 104 1443533
634,061 634,061
& /\7,939 159 7373 468
9,931,324 9,507 356
\\s £ 30,008 6?8 $ 29.790.279

*i

211,642 3 531452
179,329 166,798
56,294 37530
243,707 641,399
690,972 1377179
- 56,204
6,785,656 6,242,027
6,785,656 6.298.321
7,476,628 7.675.500
1,358,104 1,443 533
13,008,827 12,130,721
8,255,059 8.540 525
22,621,990 22.114.779
$ 30,098,618 $  29.790.279

See accompanying notes.
9

41



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2019 2018
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,590,700 $ 1,200,992
Affiliate management fees 363,803 429,446
Rental income 246,217 291,852
Loan interest 21 6,185
Loan recoveries - 150,000
Other income 141,856 121,527
Total operating revenues 2,342,597 2,200,002
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 1,982,021 2,017,337
General and administrative 726,329 790,837
Depreciation 118,825 115,880
Other expenses - 595 3,214
Total operating expenses . 2,827,770 2,927,268
Operating loss before special project grants (485,173) (727,266)
Special project grants:
Revenues 2,236,240 8,245,129
Expenses (1,382,771) (7,160,909)
Total special project grants 853,469 1,084,220
Operating income 368,296 356,954
Non-operating revenues:
Investment income 31,915 42 401
Interest income 107,000 57,372
Total non-operating réve 138,915 99,773
Change in net position 507,211 456,727
Net position - beginning of year | 22,114,779 21,658,052
Net position - end of year $ 22621990 $ 22114779

See accompanying notes.
10

42



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash from fees and rental income $ 1,808,145 $ 2,926,801
Cash from special project grants 3,721,462 7,298,362
Loans and loan interest collected 3,198 168,511
Cash received from affiliates and other sources 514,282 383,278
Payments to employees, suppliers, and other (3,026,465) (2,493,676)
Payments for special project grants (1,382,771) (7,160,909)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,637,851 1,122,367
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets (33,396) -
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (33,396) -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in restricted cash, net of funds held on behalf of othet (22,062) (1,491,168)
Cash received from equity investments ,f“ 4 5 31,915 579,567
Interest <\ 4 " 107,000 57,372
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities )V 116,853 (854,229)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents @5 g 1,721,308 268,138
Cash and cash equivalents - beglnnlng of year \ : 17,301,840 17,033,702
oy
Cash and cash equivalents - end gf‘fe'af\ ; X \Q} $ 19,023,148 $ 17,301,840
A7
Reconciliation of income from Fperaﬂoﬂé to net cash
provided by operating ?’y
Income from operations y \ \v 368,296 $ 356,954
Adjustment to reconcile i e from openatlons to
net cash provided by ogzg%ig aCtIVI/EQ
Depreciation expense \ W 4 118,825 115,880
Loss on disposal of asset \:'/ - 1,304
Decrease in receivables 1,865,942 6,356,200
Increase in prepaid expenses (10,241) (33,990)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable {319,810) 345,400
Increase in accrued expenses 12,531 4,998
Decrease in unearned revenue (397,692) (6,024 379)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,637.851 $ 1,122 367

See accompanying notes.
11

43

e Ll



44



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Erie County industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of ECIDA’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) was created in 1970 by an act of the Legislature of the State of
New York (the State) for the purpose of encouraging financially sound companies to establish themselves and
prosper in Erie County (the County).

ECIDA has related party relationships with Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)
and Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC). All three entities are managed by the same
personnel and RDC currently shares a common board with ECIDA. Thesé:entities share the same mission, which is
to provide the resources that encourage investment, innovation, grow;h aﬁd global competitiveness, thereby creating
a successful business climate that benefits the residents of the reg

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION /‘ a8

L \ >

Revenues from administrative fees, management fees, rqn’tal incorfie

revenues. All expenses related to the ECIDA are reportedgso /
unrealized gains are reported as non-operating lncome \\

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND B?gOF AéCOUN\":'%ING
4 4

The ECIDA is reported as a specia -Qurpo”"" Tirred

are those that are financed in whole oRapart by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. The financial
statements of the ECIDA ar& mperted ing the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues /af‘é"fecordeﬁ winer?egrned and expenses are recorded at the time expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred regarbﬂess of when the related cash transaction takes place.

Nonexchange transactions @Qlch )ﬁe ECIDA gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value
in exchange, include grants. Rﬁitem’ue from grants is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.

D. TAXINCENTIVE TRANSACTIONS

ECIDA maintains an economic development incentive program to provide sales, property, and/or mortgage recording
tax benefits for qualified construction, renovation, or expansion projects or other economic development activities
within Erie County. Under this program, ECIDA may take title to or a leasehold interest in the real and/or personal
property involved in the project for the term of the incentive period. ECIDA simultaneously leases the property under a
lease agreement to the company undertaking the project (lessee). ECIDA receives administrative fees from the lessee
for providing these tax incentives which are recognized according to the terms of the fee agreement.

12
45



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ECIDA is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for qualified manufacturers and low-income housing projects. These
bonds are obligations of the borrower. Since ECIDA has no obligation to repay the principal and interest of such
bonds, they are not reflected as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. ECIDA receives bond issuance
fees from the borrower for providing this service. ECIDA also has a shared services agreement with ILDC under which
administrative and staffing services are provided to ILDC in connection with its bond issuances to nonprofit
organizations in exchange for the related bond issuance fees received by ILDC. Such fees totaled $166,250 and
$82,985, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The ECIDA's cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from date of acquisition.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable are presented net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The ECIDA maintains an aliowance for
estimated uncollectible accounts which is based on an analysis of the loap portfolio and reflects an amount that, in
management's judgment, is adequate to provide for potential qutﬁ;ﬂ‘gsses. Loans are written off when, in

management’s judgment, no legal recourse is available to collec’&lh’efa“r;bount owed.
~ b
. . . L D .
Interest on loans receivable is accrued as required by the terms of the }eement; management considers that
collection is probable based on the current economic condition of the borrow@r. Accrual of interest ceases when
management adjusts a loan reserve to 50% or more of tfieloan’s ﬂ= standing balance.
' £/

. PREPAID EXPENSES & 4
< h o
i ab?e.;tqtgutgre\aé@ounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
: \ ) ,’//’f\\?
. CAPITAL ASSETS AT L
4 B A

Capital assets are recorded at acqgiisition ;g' : ¢déﬁ“reciated over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets using the straight-line method._ ihé\ 265t oFrepairs, maintenance and minor replacements are expensed as
incurred, whereas expendituresthat ma ’éﬂ'@lly extend property lives are capitalized. When depreciable property is
retired or otherwise disposédof, thetost aad related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and
.any gain or loss is reﬂ%of,_e"ﬁ in income,\Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date received.

Capitalization thresholds‘(t%&gllar valise above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts),

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs appl
expenses.

depreciation methods, and gt : yiﬁseful lives of capital assets reported in the ECIDA are as follows:
4 Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life
Furniture and equipment $1,000 Straight-line 3-10 years
Buildings and improvements $1,000 Straight-line 5-40 years

In 1989, ECIDA developed a public warehouse and trans-shipment facility (the Port Terminal Facility) at the Gateway
Metroport facility in the City of Lackawanna. The Port Terminal Facility provides enclosed storage facilities and
materials handling services for the trans-shipment of goods by water, rail and truck. The facility is owned by ECIDA
and is operated by Gateway Trade Center, Inc. Rental property is recorded at cost which includes all costs incurred
during the development stage, net of accumulated depreciation. Port Terminal Facility rental property assets are fully
depreciated.

ECIDA also owns its former office space at 143 Genesee Street. This property is recorded at cost and leased to a
third party.

13
46



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS

Investments include venture capital investments made by ECIDA in order to spur local economic growth. The Urban
Development Action Grant (UDAG) and General Accounts include venture capital investments that are recorded at the
lesser of cost or fair value.

INSURANCE

The ECIDA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, personal
injury liability, and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent
third parties. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability
has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Settled claims from these risks has not yet
exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three years.

GRANTS

Grants are recognized at the time awarded, with timing differences resuflifig from funds spent and earned. ECIDA
receives special project grants from various Federal, State and Coupi Ié/overnments ECIDA also acts as a pass-
through entity for certain companies who receive funding from the gate includlng the Department of Transportation
(DOT). -

In certain cases, funding is received in the form of a comblnagon ofa  grant andgjoan One year after completion of
the specified program and with State approval and acceg nce ;;Ompames begin repaying the loan. A long-term
liability and repayment plan receivable are established asﬂge mmpames receiving the funding from the State are
contractually obligated to repay ECIDA for its debt service rsgulrements to the State. The payment terms of the
conduit receivables are equivalent to the terms of. = 1;),/\ s loans 1o the State.

NET POSITION S fy\.‘;y
T, A H//

a. Investment in capital assets -
depreciation.

b. Restricted- Consist asset
assets if their use i t_:bnstramedt épa

action grants (UDA )\\\

¢. Unrestricted - The net Bﬁ% assets deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources that are not inc d in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted
component of net position and therefore are available for general use by ECIDA.

”ﬂlar purpose. Restrictions are imposed by Federal urban development

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the ECIDA considers all cash to be unrestricted including demand
accounts and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of generally three months or less.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses/expenditures
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

14

47



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, the ECIDA has evaluated the provisions of GASB Statement No. 83,
Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures
Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and Direct Placements, and Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests-an
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 61, which became effective for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019, and determined that they have no significant impact on the ECIDA’s financial statements.

The following are GASB Statements that have been issued recently and are currently being evaluated, by the ECIDA,
for their potential impact in future years.

+ Statement No. 87, Leases, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2020.

¢ Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, which will be
effective for the year ending December 31, 2020.

» Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2021.

» Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2021.

/

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS <’ \\\

ECIDA's investment policies are governed by State statutes. I dltlon ECID has its own written investment policy.
ECIDA monies must be deposited in Federal Deposit Insurangé Corpo tion (FDIB)-insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. ECIDA is authorized téaise intefest bearing demand accounts and certificates of
deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the' nifed States Treasury and its agencies, repurchase
agreements and obligations of the State and its Iocalmes 3

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certlflca d i\‘;%‘*!ﬂcovered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations
that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of th "‘Un d States and its agencies, obligations of the State and its
municipalities and school districts and obli eqs;;lssue&by other than New York State rated in one of the three highest
rating categories by at least one natlonall og ized st »stlcal rating organization.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the ‘ECJ)A a;gr?e?ﬁte‘ ank deposits were considered fully collateralized.
=" S -4 \

Investment and Deposit Policy.<" -~ — A W
ECIDA follows an investme (g:md depo“ poll‘»\the overall objective of which is to adequately safeguard the principal
amount of funds invested deposnted informance with federal, state and other legal requirements; and provide
sufficient liquidity of invested fun di in ordef t& meet obligations as they become due. Oversight of investment activity is the
responsibility of ECIDA’s Chief Fig qg:;l

&

Interest Rate Risk w

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be affected by changing interest rates. ECIDA’s investment
policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

Credit Risk

ECIDA’s policy is to minimize the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an investment to fulfill its
obligations. ECIDA’s investment and deposit policy authorizes the reporting entity to purchase the following types of
investments:

Interest bearing demand accounts.

Certificates of deposit.

Obligations of the United States Treasury and United States agencies.
Obligations of New York State and its localities.

15
48



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the reporting entity may not
recover its deposits. In accordance with ECIDA's investment and deposit policy, all deposits of ECIDA including interest
bearing demand accounts and certificates of deposit, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) shali be secured by a pledge of securities with an aggregate value equal to 100% of
the aggregate amount of deposits. ECIDA restricts the securities to the following eligible items:

e Obligations issued, fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the United States
Treasury and United States agencies.
Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York and its localities.
Obligations issued by other than New York State rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

NOTE 3 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans are made to local business to complement private financing ata 4% i arest rate with varying repayment terms. All
loans are classified as commercial loans. Loans in non-accrual status a lely reserved. The following is a summary of
the loans receivable. ;/\, N

r’ -

During 2013, the ECIDA provided a $1,000,000 forgivable loan tg é fanufacturi \company Half of that amount was

immediately forgiven and the other $500,000 will be forgiven in 100 OOO‘InstaIImenw‘s/from 2019 through 2023 as long as

the borrower malntalns minimum employment requrrements ‘s,set fo )/wrn the agreement. The portion not immediately
& alldbwance for uncollectible loans.

019 ~ o, 2018

Total loans receivable $ \ 490 000> $ 503,177
Less: allowance for uncollectible Ioansf \400 000 500,000
Loans receivable, net 3,177
Less: current maturities /;Z\ L N - 3,177
Loans receivable - long-tein ) $ - $ -
)
i \ 2
NOTE 4 - GRANTS RECElVABI}-s\x/u
e —— \’,//
The following is a summary of grants receivable at December 31:
2019 2018
Buffalo Southern Railroad - 2017 PFRAP
Rail Improvement $ 140 $ 280,140
Sumitomo Dunlop Rail - PFRAP 14,352 165,256
National Grid - Zero Net Energy Building 125,000 125,000
Bethlehem Rail Phase Il 191,942 1,643,952
Total $ 331,434 $ 2214348

16
49



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - FUNDS HELD ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

ECIDA acts as a fiduciary for certain cash held for various development activities. ECIDA disburses these funds when
given the appropriate authorization. The funds include:

2019 2018

Erie County Regional Redevelopment Fund $ 1,525,156 $ 1,219,329
Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund 979,274 2,045,460
Regionally Significant Project Funds:;

Buffalo Economic Renaissance Corporation - 17,068

Buffalo Urban Development Corparation 17,531 102,960
Erie Niagara Regional Partnership - 5,616
Seneca Street Corridor 1,516,590 909,358
Main Street Improvement Fund 2,747 105 1,942 236

Total funds held on behalf of others 6,78},@56 6,242,027

g fﬂ}/

Railway Trust Fund ;f 3,503 131,441
Sales proceeds held in escrow 4700000 1,000,000

1, 000
Total restricted cash )ﬁ; 7!939!12 9y, $_ 7,373,468
,:/ -

pas

&

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

‘z\}
Balance
Increases Decreases 12/3119
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land - $ - $ 167,400
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements PN 1,106,386 . - 1,106,386
Buildings A N 2,747,489 - - 2,747,489
Furniture and equipmen " 4 '% 471,744 33,396 41,752 463,388
Total capital assets, being de""":v 'gted / i 4,325,619 33,396 41,752 4,317,263
NN 4
Less accumulated depreciation: \';’
Land improvements ! 716,292 54,528 - 770,820
Buildings 1,918,335 36,043 - 1,954,378
Furniture and equipment 414 859 28,254 41,752 401,361
Total accumulated depreciation 3,049 486 118,825 41,752 3,126,559
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,276,133 (85,429) - 1,190,704
Total capital assets, net $ 1443533 $ (85429) $ - $ 1358104
17

50



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital asset activity for ECIDA for the year ended December 31, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance
01/01/18 Increases Decreases 12/31/18
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 167,400 $ - $ - $ 167,400
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 1,106,386 - - 1,106,386
Buildings 2,747,489 - - 2,747,489
Furniture and equipment 479,885 - 8,141 471,744
Total capital assets, being depreciated 4,333,760 - 8,141 4,325,619
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 661,764 54,528 - 716,292
Buildings 1,882,291 3044 - 1,918,335
Furniture and equipment 396,388 5 308 6,837 414,859
Total accumulated depreciation 2,940, 443 . ¢ 1\5\;380 6,837 3,049 486
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,393, 3,1% (1 15 880) 1,304 1,276,133
Total capital assets, net $ 1,560 7*’45’_&/ s (115 880) $ 1,304 $ 1443533
é‘\
NOTE 7 - INVESTMENTS %’

/"\,

The ECIDA'’s investments consisted of the fellowing at mber 31:

A VS 2018
Fair Fair

, % S alue Cost value
Equity interest 987187 634,061 $ 987,187 634,061
quity . - K e 2 "4 $ $

In accordance with GASB Q{atement No: 2 FValue Measurement and Application, investments are reported at fair
value. Fair value is the price tq@t would be 'ebelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction at
the measurement date. U.S. GAQP esté Ilshes a framework for measuring fair value of assets and liabilities. That
framework prov:des a fair value hi r,gl'ly;ﬁ‘nat prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority tdwfiadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: Valuation is based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that the ECIDA has ability to access.

Level 2: Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable for the
asset and liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3: Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement.

18
51



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, investments are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.
If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the security, and would be classified within Level 2
of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the
valuation, securities would be classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.

Following is a description of the valuation methodology used at December 31, 2019 and 2018:
Equity interest - \Value based analysis performed by industry consultant familiar with the industries in which the ECIDA has

equity interest.

NOTE 8 - UNEARNED REVENUE

ECIDA received a New York State DOT grant in the amount of $365,950 in August 2017 as part of the Passenger and
Freight Rail Assistance Program. This grant also includes a $100,000 local share of eligible project costs, which Sumitomo
Rubber USA, LLC has agreed to contribute. As of December 31, 2019, $10 ﬁta is included as unearned revenue as the
grant funding is reimbursable for costs incurred by ECIDA, and $455 807 had been expended.

ECIDA received a grant in the amount of $5,200,000 from Erie County“v($4 8\?@@00) and New York State DOT Multi-Modal
Funds ($330,000) in 2017. As of December 31, 2019, $108,564 isdnicluded as u@earned revenue as the grant funding is
reimbursable for costs incurred by ECIDA, and $5,091,436 he;g Heen expended

ECIDA received an Economic Development Program grant fror Namém Grid in the amount of $125,000 in January 2017.
As of December 31, 2019, the entirety of that amount is included as tiiearned revenue as ECIDA has not begun expending

grant funds. & \\ ) .-.-.;\
\ / m%*;

\

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIQ_I‘Q;_ \\

Affiliate Management Fees

s affiliates, RDC and {LDC. ECIDA earned $363,803 and

Receivables

{_{

\2019 /T‘ 2018 2019 2018
RDC $ 3023 & 352,714 $ 303,021 353,527
ILDC 614 71/_‘, 4 76,732 250,630 208,747
Total $_ 363,808 $__ 429446 $_ 553,651 $_ 562274

ECIDA also provides personnel to perform administrative and accounting functions on behalf of Buffalo Urban
Development Corporation, which amounted to $104,414 and $83,474 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

NOTE 10 - OPERATING LEASES

Office rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $192,143 and $157,364, respectively.

The ECIDA renewed their office lease agreement with Empire State Development effective for the period of October 1,
2018 through September 30, 2023. This lease agreement states a base lease amount of $202,554 per annum plus utility
charges that will be determined on an annual basis.

19
52



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ECIDA recognized $213,529 and $208,532 of rental income on its former office for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The net book value of the leased property is approximately $1,047,300 at December 31, 2019.

Future annual rental income anticipated under this noncancelable lease is:

2020 $ 209,869

2021 209,869

2022 122,423
$__ 542,161

NOTE 11 - PENSION

ECIDA maintains a defined contribution simplified employee pension (SEP) plan covering all of its employees. Employees
are eligible to participate six months after employment, with employer contributions vesting immediately. During 2019 and
2018, ECIDA made discretionary contributions of 12% of eligible employees’ salaries. ECIDA'’s expense for contribution to
the plan for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $168,282 and $169,5786, respectively. Employees
are also permitted to participate in the New York State Deferred C nsation Plan but ECIDA does not make
contributions to this plan. {‘/;/

AN

~

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS & &

N 4
These financial statements have not been updated for subsequé;t’“ ﬁi; occurring after X0XOXX XX, 2020 which is the date
these financial statements were available to be issuegd... ;

20
53



ik \‘\"\

““THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFTRLANK**

&

A%

o o

54



N
y -\r’\j:\
>

y. - AN
SUPPLEMENTARY FORMATIO\NQ‘:_.

£

55



///

/< ’
S N

<&
**THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFTBLANK**
« o

e

56



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Current portion of conduit loans
Affiliates
Grants
Other
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
Investments
Restricted cash

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of conduit debt
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities: ,,,T;?\"f‘»
Funds held on behalf of otfaér & N
Total noncurrent liabilitiés, )&
Total liabiities \A‘\\ y 4
b, o
NET POSITION ~

Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

57

General UDAG
Account Account Total

7576519 § 11,446 629 19,023,148
56,294 - 56,294
365,508 188,143 553,651
331,434 - 331,434
126,649 i 126,649
76,118 i 76,118
8,532,522 11,634,772 20,167,294
1,358,104 &0 - 1,368,104
124,389 €0, 509,672 634,061
6,939,159 ¢~ 13800,000 7,939,159
8 421 ,6524’;?’ 1509.672 9,931,324

y -
$ 16.954474  $7°  13.144.444 30,098,618

%ﬂﬁ
- \ - \\\\
25 \ 135,617 211,642
< - 179,329
- 56,294
- 243,707
135,617 690,972
6,785,656 - 6,785,656
6,785,656 - 6,785,656
7,341,011 135,617 7,476,628
1,358,104 - 1,358,104
- 13,008,827 13,008,827
8,255,059 - 8,255,059
9.613,163 13.008.827 22,621,990
16,954,174  $ 13,144 444 30,098,618
21



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

General UDAG
Account Account
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,590,700 § -
Affiliate management fees 363,803 -
Rental income 246,217 -
Loan interest - 21
Other income 141,856 -
Total operating revenue 2,342,576 21
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 1,982,021 -
General and administrative 681,247 45,082
Depreciation 1 18,8%5@: -
Other expenses 2] -
Total operating expenses ZZ%/ZG&B 45,082

Operating income (loss) before special project grants py

Special project grants:

Ra40,112) <0, (45,061)
4 \\5

>

™ e
Revenues O £471,240 1,765,000
Expenses p N (440,771) (942,000)
Total special project grants oy $30,469 823,000
V“*“‘\/b :\ “‘)\Ty—
Operating income (loss) . \,{f id 409,643) 777,939
W ﬂ . L
Nonoperating revenues: e \) { %
Investment income -4 f - 31,915
Interest income =7 38,748 68,252
Total nonoperating revenues@&-, 38,748 100,167
(370,895) 878,106
9,984,058 12,130,721
$__ 9613163 $_ 13.008.827
22

58

Total

$ 1,590,700
363,803

246,217

21

141,856

2,342,597

1,982,021
726,329
118,825

595

2,827,770

(485,173)

2,236,240
(1,382,771)
853,469

368,296

31,915
107,000
138,915

507,211

22,114,779

$ 22,621,990



,fs/\ N

INTERNAL CONTROL AN/) compukuge
& /<f{

59



4 \ N
**THIS PAGE INTENTIOI\&L{;V LEFTHB!\_ANK**

60



= FreedMaxickeas ec

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the
Erie County Industrial Development Agency

‘ /éd in the United States of America and the
féndards issued by the Comptroller General of
( "’jj,_)ent Agency (the ECIDA) as of and for the

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally acce
standards appllcable to fmancual audits contalned in GovernmentAudmn

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements‘we conSIdered ECIDA’s internal control over financial
reportlng (internal control) to determine the audit pro:ﬁedl[fes that areﬁppropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, butinot Tor }he purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of
ECIDA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not expréss ,an ypmte@bf the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control.

P
A deficiency in internal control exists wheni‘he de @n or%ratlon of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performlng the 5’aSS|g functlon 1o prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deflcaenc eombmahon of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a matenal mlsé‘f ment of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basisgA- ‘deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a matérial weakh §s y@{impoﬁant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the mterﬁ%ﬂcontrol we}s for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deflcTa]icJes | ;snternal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during ou it'we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, matérial weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ECIDA’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

23
61



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to pravide an opinion on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering ECIDA’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Buffalo, New York
XXXX XX, 2020

= FreedMaxickeeas ec.

24
62



= FreedMaxickeeas ec.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’'S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
95 Perry Street, Suite 403

Buffalo, New York 14203 -

e p
We have examined the Erie Country Industrial Development %g%cys (the
State Comptroller's Investment Guidelines for Public Authoriti Section 2825 of the New York State Public
Authorities Law (collectively, the “Investment Gu1delmes”)éor c&ﬁgmd January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.
Management of the ECIDA is responsible for the ECIDA! liance with the specified requirements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the ECIDAs com\s\HKce with the specified requirements based on our

examination. : a“'\ . \\‘:\/

"“h&ndards established by the American Institute of

\dt-we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable

aterial respects, with the specified requirements referenced

iures to\ebtain evidence about whether the ECIDA complied with the

: d exte.nmf he procedures selected depend on our judgment, including

7o mpllance whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we
>.a reasonable basis for our opinion.

‘l;:IDA) compliance with the New York

Our examination was conducted in accordance with ’_tie {2
Certified Public Accountants. Those standagds fequire ff h:
assurance about whether the ECIDA cghplled\iﬁ all
above. An examination involves perfogﬁﬁg pro
specified requirements. The nature tirRgh
an assessment of the risks of materi

obtained is sufficient and approghatadd

Our examination does not @/v\ge a Iega ‘S\etermlnatlon on the ECIDA’s compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the ECIDA comp i ﬁl material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the period of
January 1, 2019 to December 31,
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and others within the
ECIDA and the New York State Authorities Budget Office, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Buffalo, New York
XXXX XX, 2020

63



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Investment Reports
For the year ended December 31, 2019

64




Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corp. (RDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)

2019 Annual Investment Report

Purpose of Report:

Under Section 2925(6) of the Public Authorities Law, the ECIDA and its affiliates (RDC
& ILDC) are required to prepare and approve an annual Investment Report. The
investment report is to include: ECIDA’s Investment Guidelines (see below), the results of
the annual independent investment audit (see below), a list of the total investment income
received by the corporation and a list of the fees, commissions or other charges paid to
each investment banker, broker, agent, dealer and advisor rendering investment associated
services to the corporation since the last Investment Report.

The attached schedule details the corporation’s investment income and related fees for the
year ended December 31, 2019 and were approved by the Board of each corporation on
March 25, 2020.

Investment Guidelines:

In accordance with Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law, the ECIDA and its
affiliates are required to adopt Investment Guidelines which detail its operative policy and
instructions to staff regarding the investing, monitoring and reporting of funds of the
corporation. In addition, the ECIDA is subject to the deposit and investment restrictions
contained in Sections 10 and 11 of the General Municipal Law. The ECIDA’s affiliates
have elected to follow the deposit and investment restrictions contained in Sections 10 and
11 of the General Municipal Law as a “best practice.”

The Investment Guidelines were approved by the Board of each corporation on March 25,
2020 and are posted on the ECIDA website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-us-
corporate-policies. The Investment Guidelines for the ECIDA and its affiliates are
consistent with the prior Guidelines adopted on March 27, 2019.

Investment Audit:

The auditors for the ECIDA and its affiliates have audited the corporation’s compliance
with the Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities. In their report dated March __,
2020, Freed Maxick CPAs indicated that the Agency complied, in all material respects,
with these Investment Guidelines.

65



Juawaaibe ajes || J05WAL) LM SOURPIOIIL Uj MOIOSD Ul PISH

1oUISIQ H0pUIOY J9aNG BIBUAG SU) Ul SJUSLUBACIdLW) SINJONASENU] JO) JUNOI0E PAJOUSIY
191181 19901S Ulepy SY) uj siuawaAoldw) aInjanyseyu] Joj JUNCIIE pajop)say
uofjesodiod) Juswdojereq ueqs( ojeyng 10} JUNOOR paYolIsay

UONEIOAIOT) SOUBSSIELIDYY DJLLIOUCDT Ofeyng Joj JUNOoJE PajoMISay

sjafoid Ajunoy) aug pajeubisap g jejusn) 22IaWWO:) UUBWBUNOA YLON 10} JUN02oe pajoL)sey
Juawudojaasp pUBlYLON PUB PUSTIBAY ‘dO1g o) Junosoe pajousay

SIAROE POJE|3I PEOIEI BUfHOYS AUNDY SUT 10} JUNCJDE Pajau)Say

junasoe juawsaAuysbuiaeg puny HvYan vaio3

Junadoe JuaunsaaulBuRayd pund Svan vaiod

junoaoe sBuiaes yQIo3 [e1euan

unoase Bupioayd valDa [e1suan

i o e i o o e

osoding pajopsoy

- $ _legebl ¢

- £V6°L
- 669°¢
- 699

- 8

- §0L°2
- 1Zr'zlL
- 8¢

- 0E1L'89
- zzl

- £81°8€
- 128

saaq awoou|
JUBLWIISTAU]

6107 ]

%00°0
%S9°0
%8G90
%590
%00'0
%G9°0
%590
%E0°0
%S9°0
%E00
%590
%E0°0

6102 22Q
'Y
jsasaiu|

‘pasingsip A|Inj 21am SpUNy JSYE 61,07 JoqUIS)dag Paso|o JUNODJY ,,
‘$33) AU JO UORONPSP S} 0} Joud S| pue §)0Z JeqLIB9sQ JO UL BU) Jo} ajes pazZijenuue Su).S) ajey Jsalaj) ayj .

e

80€7296'02$ BOE'GLOVZ S

000°000'L
065915}
S0V IbL2
LeS'LL

961'625°)
v.2'6.6
£05'eG)
2L9'PE0LL
166V LY
09L'60v'0
664'004°L

elLaz/erzl

000000}
85E'606
95Z'Zv6'L
096'20}
890'L1
62E'6L2')
001'Gv0'Z
It 1EL
650°cL 101
¥29'80Y
L18'12)'S
961'p5g"L

8L0Z/HI

sauejeg /o  @suejeg /o

JUEAnD
jueg L3N
Jueg L8N
fued 13N
jueg L3N
ueq L8N
jueq 12N
jueg 19N
jueg g
jueg 19N
jueq 19N
yueg 19N

uopmpsyy
lejoueu4

:sajoN
-]
&

noany Apojsno pauejdid i
sbujAesg |}
sBuesg oL
sBunes 6
sbujaeg g
sBunes 2
sBuines o

Bupjosyd g
sBuineg
Gupoeyd €
sBulaeg 2
Bupioays |

adA )] Junoany

610Z ‘L€ Jaquiasaq papus Jeak ay) Jo.

Hoday JUSW)SIAUY [enuuy

(vain3) Aoueby jJuswidojanaq |eysnpu| Ajunod sz



Junoaoe yuswjsaauysbuineg pundy ueoy val M
Junoooe JuswisaauyBuppayn pung ueo yas p

asodind pajouysay

67

-soay AUE Jo uojonpap 3 0} Joud S| pue §10Z Jaquwasa( Jo YlLow Sy} Jo} Sjel pazjjenuue ay} si sjey )sassiu) syl ,

:sajoN

- $ oL'se ¢ GL2'069'. § 092't96's $
. ¥68'18 %G9'0  6b.'€9g'9 6C8'GZG°S jueq 191 sbujpeg g
- oLz %E0°0  999'980°L SO LE¥ yueg L8 Buppayd |
6102 980 mrcm\pmhv 6L02/LL
sd994 awoou) ey aasuejeg /o  @ouejed /9 uonnsu| adA] junosoy
JUDBWISAAU| jsaiaju| |ejoURUd
| 6102 |

610Z ‘L€ Jaquiesaq papusa Jeaf ay) 104
pHoday JualuyseAu] |enuuy

(oay) uoneiodion Juswdojanag jeuoibay A3uno) aug @ ojeyng



Junoaoe Buasyd D) [essuss) M
JUnoo%e Ueon asudisjusiomln 4ag AjunoD aug M

asoding pajousoy

68

‘sa9j Aue Jo uononpap ay) o} Joud s pue §10Z JquIasa JO YJuoL Sy} Joj ajel pazjjenuue auy) S| Sjey Jsalaj) ayl ,

!SOJON
- $ 89 $ 6£9'202 $ £96'/22 §
B 4’ %E00 gie'Le 6Z9'se yueg 12N Bupjosyd z
- ¢ PS %E0°0 0ze'o8l 8€1'681 jueg 12N Bupposyd |
6102 %8@ 6L02/1LE/2) 6L02/L1L
s$994 awoayj 28y aouejeq /9 oouejeg O uonmpsul ad£ | Junoooy
JUBULSAAU| ysasap [etoueuld
| 6L02 |

6L0Z ‘L€ Joquianag papus Jeah ay) o4
podey Jusuysaau) jenuuy

(9a11) uopeiodion juswidojaaaq pue jeLysnpuj fjuno) sl @ ojeyng



To: ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC Board of Directors

From: Governance Committee — Brenda McDuffie (Chair)
Date: March 25, 2020 THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY
Re: Govemnance Committee Report

In accordance with the Governance Committee Charter, the Governance Committee is required to “report its actions and
recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the Board following a meeting of the Governance Committee and
when otherwise requested by the Board”. This report is prepared to satisfy this requirement.

The ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Governance Committee met on March 10, 2020. Governance Committee Chair Brenda McDuffie
and the Committee members present reviewed the following items:

1) 2019 PAAA Annual Report: The Governance Committee reviewed the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC 2019 PAAA Annual
Report. They did not recommend any changes. The PAAA Annual Report will be reviewed by the full board
during the March 25, 2020 Board meeting.

2) 2019 Board of Directors’ Self-Evaluation: The Governance Committee reviewed the Summary Sheets and
comments for the ECIDA, RDC, and the ILDC board self-evaluations. They did not note any major issues. The
Governance Committee Chair will forward the Summary Sheets to the Authority Budget Office (ABO) as required.

3) 2019 Governance Committee Seif-Evaluation: The Governance Committee reviewed the 2019 Governance
Committee Self-Evaluation. The evaluation documented the activities of the Governance Committee during 2019.

4) Annual Re-Adoption of Policies. Charters & Guidelines: The Governance Committee reviewed the following
policies of the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC:

Whistleblower Policy;

Governance Committee Charter;

Property Disposition Guidelines;

Property Acquisition Policy;

Defense & Indemnification Policy;

Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy;
ECIDA Employee Compensation Policy;

Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy;

Statement of the Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors;
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members; and
Procurement Policy.

The Agency’s Compliance Officer informed the Committee that ECIDA Counsel Harris Beach reviewed the above
referenced policies and did not recommend any changes. She added that the ABO did not publish any new
Recommended Guidance for any of these policies. No changes were recommended by the Committee. The Board
will review these policies during the March 25, 2020 Board meeting,.

5) Adoption of Policies. Charters & Guidelines: ECIDA staff and Counsel Harris Beach recommended two revisions to
the Code of Ethics. One revision resulted from an ABO Recommended Guidance for a Conflict of Interest Policy.
Staff and Counsel reviewed the ABO’s proposed policy and noted that the recommended provisions were already
incorporated in the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC’s current Code of Ethics. Accordingly, Staff and Counsel recommended
renaming the Code of Ethics to “Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy.” Staff and Counsel also recommended
adding a sentence to the Whistleblower section of the Code of Ethics to more clearly reflect that the
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC has a separate Whistleblower Policy. The Committee supported these recommendations. The
revised policy will be reviewed by the full board during the March 25, 2020 Board meeting.

6) PARIS Report Update: The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the ABO’s reporting
requirements through PARIS, the Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). The Agency’s
Compliance Officer informed the Committee that the Agency is on track to complete the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC
PARIS reports on or before the March 31, 2020 deadline.

Erie County Industrial Development Agency = 95 Perry Street, Suite 403 = Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

69



7)

8)

9)

2019 Local Labor Report Update: The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the 2019 Local
Labor reports. The Agency’s Compliance Officer reported that the Agency was following up on two delinquent
reports. The results from the companies that submitted reports revealed that approximately 98% of the
contractors/sub-contractors who worked on IDA supported construction projects resided within the eight counties of
WNY and approximately 74% of all contractors and subcontractors resided within Erie County.

Board Member PAAA Training Update: The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the
required ABO board member training, The Agency’s Compliance Officer informed the Committee that seven board
members received training in 2019. The Agency’s Compliance Officer also reported that she regularly forwards the
training schedule to board members who have not had the required training and to those who have not had training
within the last three years.

Results of ECIDA’s 2019 Performance Measures: The Governance Committee reviewed the results of the ECIDA’s
2019 Performance Measures. They did not recommend any changes. The results of the 2019 Performance
Measures will be reviewed by the full board during the March 25, 2020 Board meeting.

10) Mission Statement & 2020 Performance Measures: The Governance Committee met on November 19, 2019,

December 11, 2019, and February 10, 2020 to discuss the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Mission Statement and 2020
Performance Measures. During those months, the Committee:
¢ Revised the mission statement to include a commitment to growth, economic stability, and job creation
and retention for businesses and individuals.
Revised the metrics relating to private investments and innovation goals.
Added additional metrics relating to loans, tax incentives, and other support to women and minority
businesses.
o Requested that creation and retention of jobs referenced in the job growth section be broken down into
categories.
¢ Added several Agency and client compliance related goals.
» Updated individual performance objectives to reflect which organization(s) they apply to (ECIDA,
RDC, and/or ILDC).
* Revisited the methodology for goal setting. Where applicable, the Committee recommended
methodologies other than the previously used three year rolling averages.

A draft of the revisions discussed during the November, December, and February meetings were presented at the
March 10 Governance Committee meeting. The Committee reviewed the new draft. They did not recommend any
additional changes. The 2020 Mission Statement & Performance Measures will be reviewed by the full board
during the March 25, 2020 Board meeting.

70



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC)

2019 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Governance Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Governance Committee, as mandated under Section 2824(7) of the New
York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) keeping the Board informed of current
best governance practices; (ii) reviewing corporate governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate
governance principles; and (iv) advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills
and experiences necessary required of potential Board members.

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

1. Are the members of the Governance X (O | O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and are individuals appointed
to the Governance Committee
knowledgeable, or have expressed a
willingness to become knowledgeable, in
matters pertaining to governance?

2. Is each member of the Governance X || O
Committee an “independent member"
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Governance Committee
members, who are members of the
Agency, comply with the conflict of interest
provisions applicable to public officers
under Article 18 of the New York General
Municipal Law?

3. Did the Governance Committee meet a X< [0 | O | The Governance Committee met on
minimum of once (1) each calendar year? 1/23/19, 3/20/19 (no quorum),

11/19/19, and 12/11/19.

4. Were meeting notices and agendas X | O O
prepared for each meeting and provided to
Governance Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

71



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Comments

5. Did the Governance Committee develop X ] See Questions #6-#9 below.
the Agency’s governance practices, which
should address transparency,
independence, accountability, fiduciary
responsibilities and management
oversight?

6. Did the Governance Committee develop a X ] A Statement of the Competencies
statement of the competencies and and Personal Attributes is posted on
personal attributes required of Board the ECIDA website. It was approved
members to assist those authorized to by the ECIDA Board of Directors on
appoint members to the Board in 2/16/10. Revisions to this document
identifying qualified individuals (it being were not necessary in 2019.
acknowledged that membership in the
Agency is determined pursuant to Section
891-a of the General Municipal Law)?

7. Did the Governance Committee develop ¥ ] No additional committees were
and recommend to the Board any revisions recommended by the Governance
to the number and/or structure of Board Committee in 2019.
committees?

8. Did the Governance Committee develop X ] New Board members attend an
and provide recommendations to the orientation session hosted by ECIDA
Board regarding Board member education, staff and are provided with a New
including new member orientation and Member Orientation Manual.
regularly scheduled Board member
g;'or‘r'é‘feg’ t?;:cfr??:?egﬁli?eztit:c]er As of 12/31/19, 18 of 19 ECIDA/RDC

. . Board members and 5 of 7 ILDC

iﬁﬁf&énga(fv)vd the New York Public Board members have received the
' PAAA required training. All Board
members who have not received the
training received notifications
throughout the year regarding PAAA
training session dates.
9. Did the Governance Committee develop, X | O

review and recommend to the Board the
adoption and/or revisions to the following:

(i) the Agency's Code of Ethics.

(i) written policies regarding conflicts of
interest.

72




‘Governance Committee Self-Evaluation ) . Comments

(iii) written policies regarding the ltems i) & ii) are included in the
protection of whistleblowers from ECIDA Code of Ethics. The
retaliation. Governance Committee reviewed the

Code of Ethics during its 3/20/19
Committee meeting. The Committee
did not recommend any changes.
The Code was re-adopted by the full
Board during its 3/27/19 Board
meeting.

(iii) In 2012, the Governance
Committee approved a formal
Whistleblower Policy. The
Committee did not recommend any
changes. The Policy was re-adopted
by the full Board during its meeting

on 3/27/19.
(iv) equal opportunity and affirmative iv) The ECIDA's EEO policy is
action policies. included in the Personnel Handbook
and the Procurement Policy.
(v) written policies regarding procurement v) The ECIDA Procurement Policy
of goods and services, including policies (which includes lobbying law
relating to the disclosure of persons who restrictions) was reviewed by the
attempt to influence the Agency's Governance Committee on 3/20/19.
procurement process. ECIDA staff and counsel

recommended adding a section
entitled “Preferred Source
Procurement” to satisfy a
Recommended Guidance published
by the ABO. The Committee agreed
with the recommended change. The
new Policy was adopted by the full
Board during its 3/27/19 Board

meeting.
(vi) written policies regarding the vi) The ECIDA Property Disposition
disposition of real and personal property Guidelines were reviewed by the
and the acquisition of property. Governance Committee on 3/20/19.

It was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/27/19 Board meeting.

(vii) committee charters, including this vii) The ECIDA Governance
Charter. Committee Charter was reviewed by
the Governance Committee on
3/20/19. It was re-adopted by the full
Board during its 3/27/19 Board
meeting.

73



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

(viii) any other policies or documents viii) The Governance Committee did
relating to the governance of the not approve any additional policies in
Agency, including rules and 2019.

procedures for conducting the
business of the Agency’s Board,
including the Agency'’s Bylaws. The
Governance Committee will oversee
the implementation and effectiveness
of the Bylaws and other governance
documents and recommend
modifications to the Board as
necessary or appropriate.

10. Did the Governance Comnittee: X | O | O
(i) reportits actions and i) & ii) As stated above, all policies/
recommendations to the Board at each guidelines referenced above were
regular meeting of the Board following a adopted or re-adopted by the Board
meeting of the Governance Committee on 3/27/19.
and when otherwise requested by the
Board.

(i) report to the Board, at least annually,
regarding any proposed changes to this

Charter.

(iii) provide a self-evaluation of the iii) On 3/20/19, the Committee
Governance Committee's functions to the performed a Self-Evaluation for the
Board on an annual basis. calendar year 2018 and provided a

status report to the Board on 3/27/19.

74



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Seif-Evaluation Notes

1)

2)

3)

4)

9)

6)

During its 1/23/19 meeting, ECIDA staff discussed its legal RFP process, criteria for rating law
firms, results of the interviews, and staff recommendations. The Committee agreed with all staff
recommendations.

In February 2019, the Governance Committee performed a 2018 Board Member Self-Evaluation
for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC boards. The Committee discussed the results of these
evaluations during the 3/27/19 board meeting.

In addition to the above referenced policies, the Governance Committee discussed the following
items during its meeting on 3/20/19: (1) 2018 Performance Measures.Report & Results; (2) 2019
Mission Statement & Performance Measures: (3) 2018 PAAA Annual Report; (4) Property
Acquisition Policy; (5) Defense & Indemnification Policy; (6) Board Member Compensation; (7)
Reimbursement & Attendance Policy; (8) ECIDA Compensation Policy; (9) Travel Conferences
Meals & Entertainment Policy; and (10) Statement of the Duties & Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors. The Committee did not recommend changes. The full Board approved these
documents/policies during its 3/27/19 Board meeting.

The ECIDA’s Compliance Officer provided an update on the status of the ECIDA’s Public
Authority Reporting Information System (PARIS) report to the Committee on 3/20/19.

During the Governance Committee meeting on 3/20/19, ECIDA’s Compliance Officer reported
that there were no violations of the Agency’s Local Labor Policy in 2018.

During its 11/19/19 and 12/11/19 meetings, the Governance Committee, ECIDA staff, and
ECIDA counsel discussed the ABO Policy Guidelines for mission statements and performance
measurement reports. The Committee recommended changes to the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC joint
Mission Statement and the 2020 Performance Measures. ECIDA staff expects to hold additional
Governance Committee meetings in early 2020 to finalize these documents. The revised
documents will be presented to the full board in March 2020.

75




Tax Incentives Induced 2020

Barcalo Living & Commerce/Barcalo Buffalo,
LLC

Buffalo

$

34,727,449

34

10

1 Project

25 Projected FTE New Jobs
10 Projected PT New Jobs

76

$

34,727,449

9

34

10




Tax Incentives Closings - 2020

77

Moog, Inc. $ 44,300,000 288 357 0 0 Elma |3/22/2017 12/31/2020
Steuben Foods, Inc. $ 16,457,951 564 582 19 19 Elma 3/27/2019 3/31/2020
Hertel Pacific, LLC/Cypress
North $ 999,568 16 18 1 1| Buffalo 8/28/2019| 13/31/2020
3 Projects Closed
89 FT Projected New Jobs
0 PT Projected New Jobs

$61,757,519 868 957



uondwaxa e-581 AlD

LET'LOES 1ZE'86$ jelol Aujedidiunw aadadsal
ay3 jo Jossasse ay} Aq 10} 3|1} 03 SpPUAU| 4O
pauiwua1ap si 13foud yoes | sey Auedwod sajouap,,
U0 JUBLISISSE |eul) BY | 4
006°8S 00€°Ts [448:743 €E°LS 000°0TTS YUON
ssaudAD/ouoed |9uBH
SLL'09TS €9/'TSS Ov'ELES 1ZAVTAR 000's02$ Spoo4 usqnals
9V LETS 8STPrS I ELES 74 TARS SLT'SLTS Soopy
QOIY3d LNJNILYEY aoni3d| 3Lvd XVL1VO01| 3ALVH XVL ALNNOD 133104¥d OL JNVN 103r0ud|
YIAO 1037f0Yd IHL 40O LNINILYEY HIAO ANaA INTVA g3sS3sSSY NI
1INS3Y v SV SAXVL TVOO0T| 103r0¥d FHL 40 LINSIY ASVYIUINI TYNLIV HO '1S3
NI 3SVIYONI GILD3T0Yd YV SV SaXV.L ALNNOD
NI 3SY3HINI G31J3f0¥d
SHNISOTI 0207

{(dv2 XV1 SAN 40 SNOLLIIYLSIY OL 123r4NS) LOVAINI XV1 A31VINILSI

78



THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

Item 3.7

To:  ECIDA & RDC Boards of Directors
From: Mollie Profic, CFO
Jerry Manhard, Chief Lending Officer
Re:  Board Certification of Revolving Loan Fund Plan
Date: March 25, 2020

Between 1979 and 1983 the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) received a total of
$8.5 million in four U.S. Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (EDA)
Title IX grants. $7 million was used to establish the RDC Revolving Loan Fund (RLF). As part of the
annual reporting to the EDA in connection with the operations of the RLF administered by the Buffalo
& Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), the ECIDA must certify that the RLF is
being operated in accordance with the policies and procedures contained in the Loan Administration
Plan (LAP), also referred to as the RLF Plan. The LAP is required to be updated and approved by EDA
every five years. The RDC’s LAP was most recently approved on October 1, 2018.

Many of the requirements of the LAP overlap with the Federal regulations under Title 2 of the U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 and are tested as part of the Single Audit performed annually.
Management discussed the requirements of the LAP with Freed Maxick (independent auditors) and
came up with a set of Agreed Upon Procedures (AUP) to be reviewed and tested in conjunction with the
Single Audit. This approach was discussed with both the Loan Committee and Finance & Audit
Committee and deemed appropriate from both an operational and cost perspective.

The testing performed as part of the Single Audit yielded an unmodified (clean) opinion and did not
yield any audit findings. The testing performed under the AUP noted one loan tested that staff was
unable to obtain updated personal financial statements, despite multiple attempts. RDC staff is
continuing efforts to obtain a certified personal financial statement from the borrower. A copy of the
Agreed Upon Procedures report issued by Freed Maxick is attached.

Action:

Approval of the attached resolution certifying that the Revolving Loan Fund is operating in accordance
with the approved Loan Administration Plan.

Erie County Industrial Development Agency « 95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754  www.ecidany.com

79



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REVOLVING LOAN FUND ANNUAL RESOLUTION

The meeting of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was convened on
March 25, 2020 at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (THE “RLF BOARD” OR “AGENCY”) IN CONNECTION WITH
AN ANNUAL CERTIFICATION TO BE MADE UNDER THE STANDARD
TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL
REQUIREMENTS OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ADMINISTRATION (THE "EDA")

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(the “RDC”) was incorporated as an affiliate of the Erie County Industrial Development
Agency for the purpose of encouraging the retention and expansion of existing companies
as well as the attraction of new companies to target areas of Erie County using the
resources from various Revolving Loan Funds (the "RLF") to make direct loans to
individual companies; and

WHEREAS, the RDC was originally established with grants from the EDA of
$7,000,000, the County of Erie Community Development Block Grant funds of
$2,316,000 and the City of Buffalo Community Development Block Grant funds of
$1,800,000, and has received no other further grant funding since it was started; and

WHEREAS, in October 2016, the County of Erie Community Development
Block Grant funds of $2,316,000 was removed from the RLF after a dispute between the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) and EDA related to the
County of Erie sub-fund was settled; and

WHEREAS, through the efforts of the RDC, the RLF has grown to total net
assets now in excess of $17,000,000, which includes the EDA and the City of Buffalo
grant funding as described above, principal repayments, and interest; and

WHEREAS, a review of the RLF portfolio is to be conducted annually to
determine adherence to the terms and conditions of the original grant, compliance with
EDA regulations, completeness of supporting loan files/documentation and conformity
with miscellaneous operational procedures; and

WHEREAS, Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUP) were conducted on a sample of
loans in the RLF portfolio by Freed Maxick, CPAs, P.C in addition to audit requirements

of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards to ensure

Page 1 of 3

80



RDC’s compliance with its Loan Administration Plan (“LAP”) as set forth by the EDA,;
and

WHEREAS, the Standard Terms and Conditions and Administrative Manual
Requirements of the EDA require the RLF Board to provide annual certification that the
RLF Loan Board (the RDC) and the Grant Recipient's governing body (the Agency) have
reviewed the RLF and have determined that the RLF is being operated in accordance with
the policies and procedures contained in the LAP, and that the loan portfolio meets the
standards contained therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. To the best knowledge and belief of the members of the Agency and
with the disclosures provided above, the RLF is being operated in accordance with the
policies and procedures contained in the LAP, and the loan portfolio meets the standards
contained therein, subject to the following notations:

(i) Certain  operational  requirements of the LAP such as
updating/maintenance of certain collateral documents (particularly
insurance policies, collection of tax returns/financials, etc.) are of
continuing concern.

(i)  An appeal over a disputed cost allocation (in the amount of $352,000)
resulting from an audit performed by the U.S. Department of Commerce
Office of the Inspector General (“OIG™) during late 2003 and early 2004 is
yet to be resolved or formally acknowledged as being no longer an issue
with the OIG and therefore remains an open item. Despite the fact that
OIG and the EDA stated in October, 2006 that they were willing to
reconsider the request to allow a portion of the administrative costs
initially disallowed by the audit, no formal decision to the RDC’s detailed
reply from the EDA has been received and the appeal remains an
unresolved item (without a reserve set-aside allocated) more than ten years
later, awaiting direction from the OIG; and

(ii1)  The OIG has initiated an audit of EDA’s controls and processes associated
with the management of its Revolving Loan Fund program, with the
objective of the audit to determine the adequacy of controls EDA has in
place specifically for the areas of capital utilization, default rates,
reporting and audit oversight. Although the RDC is not the only entity
included in the EDA review on a national level, the results of this review
are still unknown as to how (if at all) the RDC will be affected.

(iv)  Section 307.9 of the EDA Regulations requires that the LAP be updated

every five (5) years. The last time the plan was updated was in October
2018.

Page 2 of 3

81



Section 2. The Chair or Vice Chair, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating
Officer, the Executive Vice President, and/or the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer or
Assistant Treasurer of the Agency are hereby authorized to execute all necessary
documents to make the required annual certification to the EDA including the notations
as listed above.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Page 3 of 3

82



AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation

As of December 31, 2019

83



?ﬂj Freedl\/laxiCkEpAs, PC.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo, New York

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Buffalo and Erie
County Regional Development Corporation (the “RDC"), on the loan monitoring procedures and
documentation maintained by the RDC for the purpose of evaluating the monitoring procedures and
records maintained in accordance with the Loan Administrative Plan (the ‘Plan”) as set forth by the
Economic Development Administration (the “EDA”"), for the period of January 1, 2019 through December
31, 2019. RDC’s management is responsible for loan monitoring procedures and records maintained in
accordance with the Plan. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties
specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the
procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any
other purpose.

The procedures performed and related findings are as follows;

Procedure 1 -

We have verified that RDC has monitored loans on an énanual basis in accordance with section D.2. Loan
Monitoring Procedures of the Plan for loans selected for testing for the period of January 1, 2019 through
December 31, 2019.

Findings

There was one finding noted. One instance of no personal financial statement was maintained by the
RDC for an active loan recipient. However, we noted that there have been attempts made by the RDC to
contact the loan recipient to obtain the most recent personal financial statement.

Procedure 2

We have verified that the RDC has obtained the environmental reviews for all loans that are collateralized
with commercial real estate in accordance with section B.3 Loan Processing Procedures of the Plan for
loans selected for testing for the period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.

Findings
There were no findings noted.

Procedure 3

We have verified the RDC has obtained the Federal Regulations Acknowledgment form in accordance
with Section B.1. Loan Processing Procedures of the Plan for the loans selected for testing for the period
of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.

Findings
There were no findings noted.

84



This agreed-upon-procedure engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did
not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or
conclusion. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Directors and the management of
the RDC and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than the specified parties.

Batavia, New York
March 18, 2020

85



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING:

LIVE STREAMED:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

March 5, 2020, at Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, 5* Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York

This meeting is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
Agency’s website at www.ecidany.com.

Denise Abbott, Hon. Byron W. Brown, Hon. Johanna Coleman,
Richard Cummings, Hon. William J. Krebs, Brenda W. McDuffie,
Hon. Glenn R. Nellis, Laura Smith and Lavon Stephens

Hon. April Baskin, Rev. Mark E. Blue, Colleen DiPirro, Richard
Lipsitz, Jr., David J. State, and Maria Whyte

Steve Weathers, Chief Executive Officer; John Cappellino, Executive
Vice President; Karen M. Fiala, Assistant Treasurer/Secretary; Dawn
Boudreau, Assistant Secretary; Robert G. Murray, Esq./Harris Beach,
General Counsel

Tod Cislo, on behalf of 3310 Benzing Road, LLC; Byron DeLuke, on
behalf of 637 Linwood, LLC; Milan Tyler, Esq., counsel to Jemal’s
Seneca, LLC; and Taylor Creighton, on behalf of Steuben Foods,
Incorporated

There being a quorum present at 9:05 a.m., the Meeting of the Members of the Policy
Committee of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency was called to order by Ms.
McDuffie who presided over the meeting in the absence of Chair Lipsitz.

MINUTES

The minutes of the February 6, 2020 Policy Committee meeting were presented. Upon
motion made by Ms. Abbott and seconded by Mr. Nellis, the aforementioned Policy Committee
meeting minutes were unanimously approved.

PROJECT MATRIX

Mr. Cappellino reviewed the Agency’s Project Matrix. Ms. McDuffie directed that the
report be received and filed.

Page 1 of 3

86



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

PROJECT PRESENTATIONS

3310 Benzing Road, LLC/Marathon Drains/MRP Supports. 3310 North Benzing Road.
Orchard Park, New York. Mr. Cappellino presented this proposed sales tax and real property tax

abatement benefits project involving the construction of a 10,000 sq. ft. addition to the
company’s existing facility. The existing facility is approximately 23,000 sq. ft. and is at
capacity. The expansion is necessitated by increased product demand and related business
growth and will create a safer working experience.

Mr. Cislo spoke on behalf of the company and described the proposed project. General
discussion ensued.

At this point in time, Mr. Brown joined the meeting.

Ms. Coleman moved and Mr. Krebs seconded to recommend the project as proposed be
forwarded to the ECIDA Board for approval. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the project
was then unanimously approved.

637 Linwood. LLC/1275 Delaware, LLC, 1275 Delaware Avenue. Buffalo. New York.
Mr. Cappellino presented this proposed sales tax and mortgage recording tax benefits project
involving the adaptive re-use of a former medical office building located at 1275 Delaware
Avenue in the City of Buffalo. The project involves converting the medical office building into
a mixed use structure containing approximately 10,000 sq. ft. of commercial space and
33 residential one and two bedroom units. '

Mr. DeLuke spoke on behalf of the company and described the proposed project.
General discussion ensued.

Mr, Brown moved and Mr. Stephens seconded to recommend the project as proposed be
forwarded to the ECIDA Board for approval. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the project
was then unanimously approved.

Jemal’s Seneca. LLC. 1 Seneca Street. Buffalo, New York. Mr. Cappellino presented
this proposed mortgage recording tax benefits project involving the redevelopment and
re-occupancy of the vacant 1.2 million sq. ft. Seneca One complex which consists of a vacant
38-story tower, two 4-story annex buildings to the south and west of the tower and a plaza area
surrounding these buildings. The redevelopment plan will serve to provide needed commercial
Class A office space to Buffalo’s growing IT hub and stabilize an iconic Buffalo commercial
complex. Mr. Cappellino also described the request made by the City of Buffalo and the
company to establish a PIF structure to fund certain project related streetscape and public
infrastructure improvements.

Mr. Tyler, counsel to the company, spoke on behalf of the company and described the
proposed project. Mr. Brown spoke in favor of the project.

Page 2 of 3

87



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

Mr. Cummings moved and Mr. Brown seconded to recommend the project be forwarded
to the ECIDA Board for approval. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the project was then
unanimously approved.

Steuben Foods. Incorporated. 1150 Maple Road. Elma. New York. Mr. Cappellino
presented this proposed sales tax and real property tax abatement benefits project involving the
buildout of approximately 26,000 sq. ft. in Steuben’s existing facility along with construction of
a 7,700 sq. ft. addition. The project will allow Steuben to increase its capacity to receive and
separately store multiple steams of fluid milk. Additionally, the project will increase Steuben’s
overall product processing and production capacity.

Mr. Creighton spoke on behalf of the company and described the proposed project.
General discussion ensued.

Mr. Krebs moved and Ms. Coleman seconded to recommend the project be forwarded to
the ECIDA Board for approval. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the project was then
unanimously approved.

There being no further business to discuss, Ms. McDuffie adjourned the meeting at
9:58 a.m.

Dated: March 5, 2020

Karen M. Fiala, Secretary

Page 3 of 3



